The anatomic variation of the superior peroneal retinaculum and inferior peroneal retinaculum and its association to peroneal tendon disorders



A Dissertation Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Medical Sciences Common Course Faculty of Medicine Chulalongkorn University Academic Year 2018 Copyright of Chulalongkorn University ความผันแปรทางกายวิภาคของ superior peroneal retinaculum และ inferior peroneal retinaculum ที่เกี่ยวเนื่องกับความผิดปกติของเส้นเอ็น peroneal



วิทยานิพนธ์นี้เป็นส่วนหนึ่งของการศึกษาตามหลักสูตรปริญญาวิทยาศาสตรดุษฎีบัณฑิต สาขาวิชาวิทยาศาสตร์การแพทย์ ไม่สังกัดภาควิชา/เทียบเท่า คณะแพทยศาสตร์ จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย ปีการศึกษา 2561 ลิขสิทธิ์ของจุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย

Thesis Title	The anatomic variation of the superior peroneal
	retinaculum and inferior peroneal retinaculum and its
	association to peroneal tendon disorders
Ву	Miss Pimpimol Dangintawat
Field of Study	Medical Sciences
Thesis Advisor	Professor Vilai Chentanez, M.D., Ph.D.
Thesis Co Advisor	Jirun Apinun, M.D., Ph.D

Accepted by the Faculty of Medicine, Chulalongkorn University in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirement for the Doctor of Philosophy

Dean of the Faculty of Medicine
(Professor Suttipong Wacharasindhu, M.D.)
DISSERTATION COMMITTEE
Chairman
(Professor Emeritus Meechai Srisai, M.D., Ph.D.)
Thesis Advisor
(Professor Vilai Chentanez, M.D., Ph.D.) Thesis Co-Advisor (Jirun Apinun, M.D., Ph.D)
Examiner
(Associate Professor Poonlarp Cheepsunthorn, Ph.D.)
Examiner
(Professor Sithiporn Agthong, M.D., Ph.D.)
External Examiner
(Assistant Professor Suwadee Chaunchaiyakul, Ph.D.)

พิมพ์พิมล แดงอินทวัฒน์ : ความผันแปรทางกายวิภาคของ superior peroneal retinaculum และ inferior peroneal retinaculum ที่เกี่ยวเนื่องกับความผิดปกติของเส้นเอ็น peroneal. (The anatomic variation of the superior peroneal retinaculum and inferior peroneal retinaculum and its association to peroneal tendon disorders) อ.ที่ปรึกษาหลัก : ศ. ดร. พญ.วิไล ชินธเนศ, อ.ที่ปรึกษาร่วม : ดร. นพ.จิรันดร์ อภินันทน์

การระบุตำแหน่งทางกายวิภาคที่แน่นอนของ superior peroneal retinaculum (SPR) และ inferior peroneal retinaculum (IPR) เพื่อใช้ในการทำหัตถการจะสามารถป้องกันการเกิดการเคลื่อนหลุดซ้ำของเส้นเอ็น peroneal ได้ การศึกษาครั้งนี้ทำการศึกษาลักษณะทางสันฐานวิทยา รวมถึงความผันแปรทางกายวิภาค การฉีกขาดของ เส้นเอ็น peroneal และปัจจัยต่างๆ ที่เกี่ยวข้อง โดยทำการศึกษาในขาอาจารย์ใหญ่จำนวน 109 ข้าง พบว่าลักษณะทาง สันฐานวิทยาของ SPR มีความผันแปรตามลักษณะทางกายวิภาคที่พบ โดยสามารถแบ่งได้เป็น 3 ลักษณะคือ type I (subtype la and lb) (มี 2 bands), type II (มี 1 band) and type III (มี 1 band) ซึ่งสามารถพบได้ 57.80% (12.84%, 44.04%), 1.83%, และ 41.28% ตามลำดับ จุดกึ่งกลางของ SPR ที่จุดเกาะต้นเมื่อเทียบกับตาตุ่มนอก พบว่ามีระยะห่าง ในแนวแกนขวางและแกนตั้งที่ 7.26±3.15 and 10.45±4.52 มิลลิเมตรตามลำดับ ลักษณะทางสัณฐานวิทยาของ IPR มี ้ความสอดคล้องกับงานวิจัยที่ผ่านมา โดยสามารถวัดความยาว ความกว้างที่จุดเกาะต้น จุดกึ่งกลาง และจุดเกาะปลาย รวมถึงความหนาของ IPR ได้ดังนี้ 23.42 ± 3.54 (17.05-33.68), 13.29 ± 2.56 (5.83-20.92), 14.50 ± 2.37 (6.68-21.34), 10.10 ± 2.63 (4.59-19.17) และ 0.48 ± 0.16 (0.20-0.87) มิลลิเมตร ตามลำดับ จากการศึกษา superior peroneal tunnel พบ low level-lying ของกล้ามเนื้อ peroneus brevis (PB) ถึงร้อยละ 78.89 ส่วน inferior peroneal tunnel นั้นแบ่งได้เป็น 2 ช่อง สำหรับเส้นเอ็น PB และ PL นอกจากนี้ยังมีการพบกล้ามเนื้อ accessory peroneal อันประกอบไปด้วยกล้ามเนื้อ peroneus quatus (11.9%), peroneus digiti quinti (30.3%) และ unusual accessory peroneal muscles (1.83%) พบการฉีกขาดของเส้นเอ็น PB 12.84% ซึ่งสอดคล้องกันอย่างมีนัยสำคัญทาง สถิติกับ type lb ข้อมูลทางสันฐานวิทยาในการศึกษาครั้งนี้น่าจะมีประโยชน์ในการใช้ทำหัตถการเย็บซ่อม SPR และ IPR

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

สาขาวิชา วิทยาศาสตร์การแพทย์ ปีการศึกษา 2561

ลายมือชื่อนิสิต
ลายมือชื่อ อ.ที่ปรึกษาหลัก
ลายมือชื่อ อ.ที่ปรึกษาร่วม

5974753330 : MAJOR MEDICAL SCIENCES

KEYWORD:

Superior peroneal retinaculum Inferior peroneal retinaculum Morphometric data Peroneal tendon tear Recostruction

Pimpimol Dangintawat : The anatomic variation of the superior peroneal retinaculum and inferior peroneal retinaculum and its association to peroneal tendon disorders. Advisor: Prof. Vilai Chentanez, M.D., Ph.D. Co-advisor: Jirun Apinun, M.D., Ph.D.

The precise information for SPR and IPR reattachment is essential for the prevention of recurrent symptom of peroneal tendon dislocation/subluxation. Therefore, this study was conducted to investigate the characteristics, the attachments and morphometric parameters of the SPR, IPR and the prevalence, origin and insertion of the accessory peroneal muscles, peroneal tendon tear, and related structures. The association between the peroneal tendon tear and those structures were evaluated. One hundred and nine embalmed cadaveric legs were dissected in prone position. The SPR was variable in its length, width, angle, thickness, and insertion patterns. Based on the characteristics and insertion pattern, it could be divided into 3 types: type I (double band with subtype Ia and Ib), type II (single band) and type III (single band) with the prevalence of 57.80% (12.84%, 44.04%), 1.83%, and 41.28%, respectively. The average coordinate (X and Y-axis) of the midpoint origin measured from the tip of fibular in all types was 7.26±3.15 and 10.45±4.52 mm. The mean of length, width at the origin, width at the middle part, width at the insertion, and thickness of the IPR were 23.42 ± 3.54 (17.05-33.68), 13.29 ± 2.56 (5.83-20.92), 14.50 ± 2.37 (6.68-21.34), 10.10 ± 2.63 (4.59-19.17) and 0.48 ± 0.16 (0.20-0.87) mm, respectively. The angle of the IPR to the horizontal axis was 38.51 ± 7.07 (11.67-54.00) degrees. The low level-lying of peroneus brevis muscle in the superior peroneal tunnel was found in 78.89% cases. The inferior peroneal tunnel was divided into the upper and lower tunnels. The normal contents were the tendons of peroneus brevis (PB) and peroneus longus (PL) in the upper and lower tunnels, respectively. The accessory peroneal muscles were found in 48 cases with the prevalence of peroneus quatus (PQ), peroneus digiti quinti (PDQ) and unusual accessory peroneal muscles as 11.9%, 30.3%, and 1.83%, respectively. The prevalence of (PB) tendon tear was found in 12.84% (14 cases) and was associated with SPR type Ib with statistically significance. Precise information of the characteristic, morphometric data and coordinate of the attachment sites were essential for surgical procedure and reconstruction of SPR and IPR.

Field of Study:Medical SciencesAcademic Year:2018

Student's Signature	
Advisor's Signature	
Co-advisor's Signature	

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Foremost, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my thesis advisor Prof. Vilai Chentanez, who has supported me throughout my thesis with her invaluable help, patience, motivation and encouragement. Her guidance helped me in all the time of research and writing of this thesis. I would not have achieved this far, and this thesis would not be completed without all the support that I always received from her. Beside my advisor, I would like to thank my thesis co-advisor Dr. Jirun Apinun, who has supported me with his invaluable help and kindness.

I would like to thank Prof. Emeritus. Dr. Meechai Srisai who was the chairman of the thesis defense for his kindness, teaching and suggestions. In addition, I would like to thank the rest of my thesis committee: Prof. Sithiporn Agthong, Assoc. Prof. Dr. Poonlarp Cheepsunthorn, and Assist. Prof. Dr. Suwadee Chaunchaiyakul serving as my committee and for their advice.

I sincerely thank Dr. Somjet Tosamran, Ms. Amornrat Tothonglor, and all of my friends in peripheral nerve research group in the dissection and data collection. Special thanks to the technical staff members of the Department of Anatomy, Faculty of Medicine, Chulalongkorn University for their support in cadaveric care.

I sincerely contribution of all cadavers who donated their body for this investigation. I would like to thank the Support for the Overseas Presentations of Graduate Level Scholarship Academic Thesis from graduated school, Chulalongkorn University

Finally, I most gratefully acknowledge my beloved daughter, my husband, my parents and my friends for all of their supporting, encouragement and care me spiritually throughout my entire life.

Pimpimol Dangintawat

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ABSTRACT (THAI)	iii
ABSTRACT (ENGLISH)	iv
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	V
TABLE OF CONTENTS	vi
List of Tables	x
List of Figures	xii
Chapter I Backgrounds and rationales	1
Backgrounds and rationales	1
Research questions	3
Primary research questions	3
Secondary research question	3
Objectives	3
Conceptual framework	5
Keywords CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY	6
Research design	6
Expected benefits and applications	6
Chapter II Review of the related literatures	7
The anatomy of the peroneus brevis and peroneus longus muscles	7
The accessory peroneal muscles	9
Peroneus quartus (PQ) muscle	9
Peroneus digiti quinti muscle (PDQ)	12

Other accessory muscles	14
The anatomy of superior peroneal tunnel and its retinaculum	15
Superior peroneal tunnel	15
The anatomy of the superior peroneal retinaculum	17
The anatomy of the inferior peroneal tunnel and its retinaculum	18
The peroneal tendon disorders	19
The peoneal tendon tears	20
The peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation	22
Treatments for peroneal tendon disorders	23
The surgical treatments of peroneal tendon tear	24
The surgical treatments of peroneal tendons subluxation and dislocation	25
The surgical techniques for peroneal tendon subluxation/ dislocation ^{(4, 7,}	¹⁰⁾ .25
Chapter III Materials and Methods	31
Target population and sample population	31
Inclusion criteria	31
Exclusion criteria	31
Sample size determination	31
Materials and Methods	31
Tools	31
Research framework	32
Methods	33
Dissections	33
Observations	35
Measurements	36

Data analysis	46
Ethical consideration	46
Chapter IV Results	47
The anatomy of the superior peroneal retinaculum and its tunnel	48
Characteristic, origin and the attachment of the SPR	48
The length of the SPR	52
The width of the SPR	53
The angle of the SPR	55
The thickness of the SPR	56
The distance from midpoint of origin and insertion of the SPR and inferior tip	of
fibula	57
The anatomy of the inferior peroneal retinaculum and its tunnel	60
Characteristic, origin and the attachment of the IPR	60
Width of the IPR	60
Angle of the IPR	62
Thickness of the IPR เป็นการณ์มหาวิทยาลัย	62
The accessory peroneal muscle	62
Superior peroneal tunnel and its content	68
The additional contents of the superior peroneal tunnel	70
The inferior peroneal tunnel and its contents	71
The morphology of the retromalleolar groove contour, retrotrochlear eminen	ce
and peroneal tubercle	75
Chapter V Discussion	78
The anatomy of superior peroneal retinaculum and related structures	78

The accessory peroneal muscles	80
The anatomy of inferior peroneal retinaculum and related structures	82
Chapter VI Conclusion	84
REFERENCES	86
Appendix	91
VITA	



List of Tables

Page

Table 2. 1 Attachment, action, innervation and blood supply of the peroneus longu	S
and peroneus brevis muscles ⁽²⁰⁻²²⁾	. 8
Table 2. 2 Previous studies of the origin, insertion, nationality and prevalence of	
peroneus quartus muscle	11
Table 2. 3 Previous studies of the origin, insertion, nationality and prevalence of	
peroneus digiti quinti muscle	14
Table 2. 4 The type of superior peroneal retinaculum ⁽⁴⁰⁾	17
Table 2. 5 The Sobel' classification of peroneal tendon tear ⁽¹⁾	21
Table 2. 6 Superior peroneal retinaculum disorders classification ^(17, 41, 42)	22
Table 4. 1 The demographic data of the cadavers	47

Table 4. 1 The demographic data of the cadavers	47
Table 4. 2 The types of SPR	49
Table 4. 3 The prevalence of the SPR	49
Table 4. 4 The length of the SPR	52
Table 4. 5 The width of the SPR	54
Table 4. 6 The angle of the SPR	55
Table 4. 7 The thickness of the SPR	56
Table 4. 8 The horizontal and vertical distances from midpoint of SPR origin and	
insertion to the fibular tip	58
Table 4. 9 The morphometric data of the inferior peroneal retinaculum	61
Table 4. 10 The prevalence of the accessory peroneal muscle, origin and insertion	1.64
Table 4. 11The prevalence of the PB tendon tear	70

Table 4. 12 The association between the peroneus brevis tendon tear with the
presence of low level-lying of the peroneus brevis muscle
Table 4. 13 The association between the peroneus brevis tendon tear with the
retromalleolar groove contour
Table 4. 14 The association between the peroneus quartus (PQ) with prominence of
peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence76
Table 4. 15 The association between the peroneus digiti quinti (PDQ) with
prominence of peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence
Table 4. 16 The association between the peroneus brevis tendon tear with
prominence of peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence
Table 4. 17 The association between the peroneus brevis tendon tear with the
presence of the peroneus quartus and peroneus digiti quinti77



List of Figures

Page
Figure 2. 1. The anatomy of the peroneus longus and peroneus brevis muscle (Modified from Moore (2014)) ⁽²⁰⁾
Figure 2. 2 The origin and insertion of peroneus quartus muscle A) the peroneus quartus muscle and its insertion at lateral wall of calcaneus B) the bifid peroneus quartus tendon coursed around the peroneus brevis tendon and inserted at calcaneus and cuboid, PL: peroneus longus, PB: peroneus brevis, PQ: peroneus
quartus (Bilgili (2014)) ⁽²⁶⁾
peroneus tertius tendon, EDL: extensor digitorum longus tendon (Demir et al. (2015)) ⁽³⁵⁾
Figure 2. 4 The other accessory muscles that originated from peroneus longus muscle; A: peroneotalocalcaneus muscle, B: anomalous fibularis (peroneal) muscle (modified from Tubb ei al. (2014) and Eabrizio (2015)) ^(37, 38)
Figure 2. 5 The cross sectional structure and T-1 MR imaging of the superior peroneal tunnel (modified from Wang (2005) and Athavale (2011)) ^(12, 18)
Figure 2. 6 The types of superior peroneal retinaculum based on their attachment and insertion pattern (Davis (1994)) ⁽⁴⁰⁾
Figure 2. 7 The anatomy of superior and inferior peroneal retinaculum showed the continuity of inferior peroneal retinaculum from inferior extensor retinaculum to insert at the posterolateral tubercle of calcaneus (Moore (2014)) ⁽²⁰⁾
Figure 2. 8 The peroneus brevis tendon tear in patients. A; grade I tear with thinning of peroneus brevis tendon, B; grade II tear with partial tear of peroneus brevis tendon, C; grade III tear with full-thickness of tear length 1 – 2 cm, D; grade IV tear
with full-thickness of tear length more than 2 cm (Coughin (2014)) ⁽⁴⁾

Figure 2. 9 The cross sectional diagram at the retromalleolar groove of peroneal tendon subluxation; grade I: the tendon stripped anteriorly to the lateral malleolus

while SPR still attached to the periosteum, grade II: the fibrous lip of SPR elevated
from lateral malleolus, grade III: avulsion of the SPR and small fragment of lateral
malleolus, grade IV: completed avulsion of the SPR from insertion and peroneal
tendons lied superficial to its, 1; peroneus brevis tendon, 2; peroneus longus tendon,
F; fibrocartilagenous ridge, R; SPR (Roth (2010)) ⁽⁷⁾
Figure 2. 10 The surgical techniques for peroneus brevis tendon tear; A: the peroneus
brevis tendon tear, B: the resection area of the flayed tendon, C: the tendon after
resection, D: the flatten or single thickness teared tendon, E: the tubularizing
techniques for repairing tendon (Coughlin et al. (2014)) ⁽⁴⁾
Figure 2. 11 The reattachment of the superior peroneal retinaculum technique; A: the
incision applied posterior to lateral malleolus, B: the SPR incised at least 2-3 mm and
relocated peroneal tendon beneath retromalleolar groove, C: reattach the SPR
through the hole. (Coughlin et al. (2014)) ⁽⁴⁾
Figure 2. 12 The soft-tissue transfer technique that described by Jones et al.
(Coughlin et al. (2014))
Figure 2. 13 The bone block procedure with using fragment of calcaneus which the
attachment of calcaneofibular ligament; A: the anteriorly tendon dislocation, B: the
bone block mobilized from calcaneus, C: the bone block was fixed by internal fixator
after tendon was relocated (Coughlin et al. (2014)) ⁽⁴⁾
Figure 2. 14 The rerouting technique beneath calcaneofibular ligament; A & B: the
strip of calcaneofibular ligament was cut and reattached by using internal fixator, C $\&$
D: the peroneal tendons were cut and reattached after relocated beneath the
calcaneofibular ligament (Coughlin et al. (2014)) ⁽⁴⁾
Figure 2. 15 The groove deepening technique (Coughlin et al. (2014)) ⁽⁴⁾

Figure 3. 1 The cadaveric leg before dissection (A) and the cadaveric leg after
removing the skin from the anterior compartment of the leg to medial border of
calcaneal tendon (B)
Figure 3. 2 The distraction of the sural nerve and small saphenous vein
Figure 3. 3 The foot was adjusted in neutral position by machinist square and
bandages
Figure 3. 4 The boundaries of the SPR, IPR and lateral border of calcaneal tendon
were marked by pins
Figure 3. 5 The horizontal distance from lateral border of calcaneal tendon (A), the
horizontal distance from peroneal tubercle (B) and vertical distance from peroneal
tubercle (C) to the inferior tip of lateral malleolus were measured by digital Vernier
caliper
Figure 3. 6 The width at the origin (D) and insertion (E) of the SPR were measured,
then, the distance between mid-point of origin and insertion was measured (F). If the
distal band present, the width at the origin (G) and insertion (H) and the distance
between mid-point of origin and insertion (I) was measured
Figure 3. 7 The width at the middle part of the SPR (J) was measured. If the distal
band present, the width at middle part of distal band (K) was determined as well38
Figure 3. 8 The vertical and horizontal distance from the mid-point of the attachment
of the proximal bands of the SPR; L: the vertical distance from the mid-point of the
origin to inferior tip of the fibula, N: the vertical distance from the mid-point of the
insertion to inferior tip of the fibula, M: the horizontal distance from the mid-point of
the origin to inferior tip of the fibula, O: the horizontal distance of the mid-point of
the insertion to the inferior tip of the fibula
Figure 3. 9 The measurement of the angle of the attachments of SPR and the
horizontal axis
Figure 3. 10 The width at the upper attachment (P) and lower attachment (Q) of the

IPR were measured, then, the distance between mid-point of upper and lower

attachments of IPR (R) were measured. The width at middle part of the IPR (S) was	
measured between mid-point of upper and lower border of the IPR	40
Figure 3. 11 The measurement of the angle of the attachments of SPR and the	
horizontal axis	41

Figure 4. 1 Type Ia (A and B) and Ib(C and D) of SPR had 2 bands inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum and lateral wall of calcaneus.: SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum; IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum; LM, lateral malleolus; SER, superior Figure 4. 2 Type II of SPR (A and B) had single band inserted on lateral wall of the calcaneus.: SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum; IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum; LM, lateral malleolus; SER, superior extensor retinaculum; IER, inferior extensor Figure 4. 3 Type III of SPR (A and B) inserted on posterior intermuscular septum.: SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum; IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum; LM, lateral malleolus; SER, superior extensor retinaculum; IER, inferior extensor retinaculum.....51 Figure 4. 4 The coordinate of mid-point of SPR origin and insertion measured from the tip of fibula (*) in each type (X, Y axis). (a) Type Ia, (b) Type Ib, (c) Type II and (d) Type III: SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum, IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum, SER, Figure 4. 5 The extension band of the IPR (A and B); PB - peroneus brevis tendon; PL Figure 4. 6 Peroneus digitiquinti (PDQ) tendon (A) and muscle (B) on the dorsal surface of foot PB, peroneus brevis tendon; PL, peroneus longus tendon; EDL, Figure 4. 7 Location of Peroneus quartus (PQ) insertion; A) retrotrochlear eminence, B) 5th metatarsal C) cuboid, D) peroneal tubercle; PB, peroneus brevis tendon; PL,

Figure 4. 8 The unusual accessory peroneal muscle (*) A) arose from peroneus	
longus muscle (PL) B) inserted at peroneal tubercle; LM: lateral malleolus, PB:	
peroneus brevis muscle	. 66



Chulalongkorn University

Chapter I

Backgrounds and rationales

Backgrounds and rationales

Although the injury to lateral compartment of the leg at ankle level usually involves lateral ligamentous complex, the injury to peroneal tendon can occur as well. There are various types of peroneal tendon disorders including peroneus brevis tendons tear, peroneus longus tendon tear^(1, 2), and peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation⁽³⁾. The peroneal tendon disorders occurred frequently in athletes^(3, 4). This pathology will decrease the ability in walking, running and sport performances. In addition, the peroneal tendon disorders can cause the lateral ankle instability^(5, 6).

The pathomechanics of peroneal tendon tear related to the immediately eccentric contraction in dorsiflexion position while the foot was attached to the ground. This mechanism of injury is similarly to the lateral ankle sprain^(7, 8). Therefore, only 60% of the patients with peroneal tendon disorders can be diagnosed at the first time of evaluation^(9, 10). Moreover, the peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation were often misdiagnosed as the lateral ankle sprain⁽³⁾. Therefore, the best choice of diagnosis peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation is magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) by observing at the retromalleolar groove⁽⁷⁾.

There are several factors related to the peroneal tendon disorders especially the anatomic variation and supernumerary contents in the superior peroneal tunnel⁽¹¹⁻¹³⁾. The supernumerary contents are generally asymptomatic. However, several previous studies found that there was a correlation between the incidence of peroneal tendon tear and low level-lying of peroneus brevis muscle^(9, 13, 14). In contrast, Mirmiran (2015) founded that there was no significant association between the low level-lying of peroneus brevis muscle⁽¹¹⁾. Therefore, the association between the incidence of peroneal tendon tear and anatomical variations are still controversy^(4, 9, 15).

Although the superior peroneal retinaculum (SPR) is the primary stabilizer of the peroneal tunnel to fit in their alignment at the superior peroneal tunnel, this retinaculum can cause the peroneal tendon subluxation/ dislocation as well. It was claimed to be the laxity or tear of SPR⁽¹⁰⁾. Moreover, the anatomic description of SPR were extremely variable in width, thickness and their pattern of insertion⁽⁷⁾. Maffulli (2006) stated that the SPR was thinner in the peroneal tendon dislocation than normal⁽⁵⁾.

The treatments for peroneal tendon disorders consisted of conservative and surgical treatments. The conservative treatments for peroneal tendon tear composed of medications, reduce activities, shoe modifications, custom-made insoles, lateral heel wedges and immobilization. Anyway, previous studies reported that conservative treatments might not prevent the recurrent episode of dislocation/subluxation of peroneal tendon^(5, 7, 16). Therefore, the surgical treatment was required after unsuccessful conservative treatments^(8, 17, 18). Nowadays, several surgical techniques for peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation had been described including rerouting of the tendon beneath calcaneofibular ligament, reconstruction or soft tissue repairing⁽⁶⁾ and soft tissue repairing with fibular groove deepening⁽³⁾. Anyway, the superior procedure had not been described. The surgical techniques for repairing the peroneal tendon tear were tendon transfer, tuberization and resection^(4, 6, 19). All surgical procedures for the peroneal tendon tear and subluxation/dislocation repair had to incise the superior SPR 2-3 millimeters posterior to fibula even though the SPR was intact. After repairing the pathology, the SPR was reattached by suturing. Most of the previous literatures of the surgical procedures described the area of SPR construction at the lateral wall of the calcaneus, but the specific area has not been documented. Moreover, Maffulli (2006) suggested that the successful treatment of peroneal tendon dislocation and prevention recurrent symptom was the reattachment of SPR to its anatomical position $^{(5)}$.

As aforementioned, the anatomical knowledge of this region especially the anatomy of SPR and IPR was essential for the successful diagnosis, treatment and prevention of the recurrent symptom. Therefore, this current study will focus on the morphology of the SPR, IPR and others structures in the superior peroneal tunnel. The association between the incidence of peroneal tendon tear and their variations of the fibular contour and the supernumerary structure for improving the successful outcome in surgical procedures in this area will be evaluated.

Research questions

Primary research questions

- 1. What are the morphology of the SPR and IPR in Thai cadavers?
- 2. What are the contour of retromalleolar groove, peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence in Thai cadavers?
- 3. Are there any extraordinary contents in the superior peroneal tunnel in Thai cadavers?

Secondary research question

- 1. What are the associations between longitudinal tear of peroneus brevis and
 - a) the length, width, thickness of the SPR?
 - b) contour of retromalleolar groove?
 - c) low level lying of peroneus brevis muscle?
 - d) present of supernumerary muscles?

Objectives

- 1. To investigate the morphology including attachment, length, width, angle and thickness of SPR and IPR
- 2. To define the pattern of the SPR and IPR
- 3. To study the morphology of the retromalleolar groove contour, peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence
- 4. To investigate the presence of the supernumerary muscles including peroneus quartus (PQ), peroneus digiti minimi quinti (PDQ) and other accessory muscles
- 5. To investigate the present of the low level lying of the peroneus brevis muscle in the superior peroneal tunnel
- 6. To identify and classify the presence of the peroneus brevis tendon tear into grade that described by Sobel et al.
- 7. To study the association between the present of the peroneus brevis tendon tear and anatomical variations within the superior peroneal tunnel

- a) the length, width and thickness of the SPR
- b) the contour of retromalleolar groove, peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence
- c) the low level lying of peroneus brevis muscle in superior peroneal tunnel
- d) the presence of supernumerary muscles including PQ, PDQ and other accessory muscles



Chulalongkorn University

Conceptual framework



Keywords

superior peroneal retinaculum, inferior peroneal retinaculum, peroneal tendon tear

Research design

Descriptive study

Expected benefits and applications

This current study will explain more anatomical knowledge in detail of the superior peroneal retinaculum and inferior peroneal retinaculum related to the surgical implications. The knowledge of the anatomy of the superior and inferior peroneal retinaculum may have the potential to improve the surgical outcomes and decrease the recurrent episode of the peroneal tendon dislocation.



Chapter II

Review of the related literatures

The anatomy of the peroneus brevis and peroneus longus muscles

The muscles of lateral compartment of leg consist of peroneus longus (PL) and peroneus brevis (PB). PL originated from the head and superior 2/3 of lateral surface of fibula and coursed along its shaft and posterior to lateral malleolus while the PB originated from the inferior 2/3 of the lateral surface of fibula. At the ankle level, PB coursed anterior to PL and posterior to lateral malleolus in the same common sheath. The lateral malleolus acted as a pulley to change the alignment of PB and PL tendons. Then, these tendons were separated in their own tunnel at the peroneal tubercle. At this level, PB coursed anterior to peroneal tubercle and inserted at the dorsal surface of tuberosity on the lateral side of the base of 5th metatarsals. PL position was inferior to peroneal tubercle and beneath cuboid. It crossed the plantar surface of the foot to insert at the inferior aspect of the base of medial cuneiform and inferolateral aspect of 1st metatarsal^(4, 7, 18, 20, 21) (Fig. 2.1).



Figure 2. 1. The anatomy of the peroneus longus and peroneus brevis muscle $(Modified from Moore (2014))^{(20)}$

The muscles of the lateral compartment were innervated by superficial peroneal nerve, a branch from common peroneal nerve. The lateral compartment of the leg received arterial supply from the anterior tibial artery to its superior part and the fibular artery to its distal part as described in table $2.1^{(21)}$.

Muscle	Proximal	Distal	Action	Innervation	Blood
	attachment	attachment	20		supply
Peroneus longus	Head and superior 2/3 of the lateral surface of fibula	inferior aspect of the base of medial cuneiform and inferolateral aspect of 1st metatarsal	Foot eversion and weakly plantarflexion	Superficial peroneal nerve (L5, S1 , S2)	Peforating branches of anterior tibial artery and fibular artery
Peroneus	Inferior 2/3 of	the dorsal	Foot eversion	Superficial	Peforating
brevis	inferior surface	surface of	and weakly	peroneal	branches of
	of lateral	tuberosity on	plantarflexion	nerve (L5, S1 ,	anterior
	surface of	the lateral side		S2)	tibial artery
	fibula	of the base of 5th metatarsals	าวิทยาลัย		and fibular artery

Table 2. 1 Attachment, action, innervation and blood supply of the peroneus longusand peroneus brevis muscles

GHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

The peroneal muscles acted as a prime mover of foot evertor and pronator. They also assisted gastrosoleus muscle in plantarflexion of the ankle. The PL assisted the gastrosoleus muscle more than PB. In addition, both PB and PL served as a dynamic stabilizer of lateral ankle by balancing the foot during standing and walking^(7, 18, 20, 21, 23).

The accessory peroneal muscles

Although, the muscle of lateral compartment of the leg consisted of PB and PL in general, several previous studies reported the present of the supernumerary muscles in this compartment as well. Previous meta-analysis study of Yammine (2015) showed that the prevalence of the accessory peroneal muscle was found in 16% in human population⁽²⁴⁾. However, the prevalence of these accessory muscles from several previous studies were varied.

Previous studies had described the accessory peroneal muscles in different names according to their insertion pattern such as peroneus accessories, peroneus digiti minimi and peroneus digiti quinti^(18, 25). Sobel et al. (1990) categorized the peroneus accessories and peroneus digiti minimi into peroneus quartus by their origin⁽²⁵⁾. Therefore, the supernumerary or accessory muscles of the peroneus muscle generally referred to the peroneus quartus muscle (PQ) and the peroneus digiti quinti muscle (PDQ). The present of the peroneal accessory muscles around this compartment was generally asymptomatic.

Peroneus quartus (PQ) muscle

Peroneus quartus muscle was the most common accessory muscle that presented in the lateral compartment of the leg. The prevalence of PQ varied from 5% - 22% ^(12, 26-28). The previous meta-analysis stated that the prevalence of PQ was higher in Indian population when compared to others and PQ was predominant in male ⁽²⁴⁾.

This muscle arose from peroneus brevis or distal shaft of fibula and inserted as a single tendon at various points such as retrotrochlear eminence of calcaneus, peroneal tubercle of calcaneus, dorsal surface of 5th metatarsal or merged with PB and PL tendon at peroneal tubercle (table 2.2). Moreover, Bilgili et al. (2014) reported that PQ had 2 separated tendons and inserted at different points. In this case, the PQ tendon was bifurcated and coursed around PB tendon, then, inserted at retrotrochlear eminence and cuboid bone⁽²⁶⁾ (Fig. 2.2).

The PQ had been reported to be co-existed with the hypertrophy of the peroneal tubercle or retrotrochlear eminence ^(18, 25). However, the hypertrophy of the

peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence were also presented in asymptomatic ankle without presented of $PQ^{(27, 29)}$.





จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

Authors	Origin	Insertion	Nationality	Number	Prevalence
	5		,	of	(% (case))
				specimens	
Sobel et		- Peroneal tubercle		. 124	21.7% (27)
al.		- Peroneus longus distal to retromalleolar			
(1990)		groove			
(25)	- Peroneus	- Peroneus brevis just distal to retromalleolar			
	brevis	groove			
		- Lateral retinaculum			
		- 2 separated tendons; base of 5 th metatarsal			
		and head of 5 th metatarsal			
		- Peroneal tubercle			
	- Peroneus	- Inserted to peroneus longus itself at the			
	longus	retromalleolar groove			
	-	- Peroneus brevis			
Zammit	- Peroneus		British	102	6.6% (6)
and	brevis				
Singh	- Posterolateral	Retrotrochlear eminence of calcaneus			
(2003) ⁽²⁷⁾	aspect of				
	fibula				
Uğurlu	The muscle belly	Posterior part of calcaneus	Turkish	22	9% (2)
et al.	of the peroneus	Contraction of the second			
(2010)	brevis				
(30)					
Ulna et			Turkish	115	5%
al.	-	งี่พ.เยงบวงทรมค.เวมธ.เยอ			
(2010) ⁽³¹⁾	C	hulalongkorn Universit	Y		
Athavale	- Lower part of		Indian	92	(20)
et al.	the lateral				
(2010)	surface of the				
(28)	fibula, inferior				
	to the origin	- Retrotrochlear eminence			
	of the PB.	- Peroneal tubercle			
	- Undersurface	- Merged with PB and PL tendon at the			
	of PB.	peroneal tubercle			
	- Adjoining part				
	of posterior				
	intermuscular				
	septum.				

Table 2. 2 Previous studies of the origin, insertion, nationality and prevalence of

<u>peroneus quartus muscle</u>

Authors	Origin	Insertion	Nationality	Number	Prevalence
				of	(% (case))
				specimens	
Prakash	- The middle	- Posterior side of the lateral muscle	Indian	70	4.3% (33)
et al.	part of the	- Peroneal tubercle of calcaneus			
(2011)	fibula				
(32)	- The muscle				
	belly of the				
	peroneus				
	brevis				
Bilgili et	- Peroneus	- Retrotrochlear eminence	Turkish	115	5.2% (6)
al.	brevis	- Cuboid			
(2014)	- Distal of fibula	- 5 th metatarsal			
(26)		- 2 different tendons bifurcated around PB and			
		insertion at retrotrichlear eminence and			
		cuboid			
Hur et	The deep or	- Tendon of the peroneus brevis (3.8%)	Korean	80	16.3% (13)
al.	posterolateral	- Lateral surface of calcaneus (2.5%)			
(2015)	portion of	- Inferior peroneal retinaculum (2.5%)			
(34)	muscle belly of	- Dorsal surface of the base of 5 th metatarsal			
	peroneus brevis	bone (1.3%)			
	(15%)				
		El Contraction of the contractio			

Peroneus digiti quinti muscle (PDQ)

The peroneus digiti quinti or peroneus digiti minimi quinti muscle (PDQ) was the accessory muscle that commonly found in Caucasian⁽²⁴⁾. The prevalence of this muscle was varied and was found bilaterally more than PQ⁽²⁴⁾. PDQ arose from the peroneus brevis tendon and gave a slender single tendon inserted at the 5th metatarsal in different part or 5th toe^(24, 35) (Fig. 2.3). Jadhav et al. (2013) reported the prevalence of PDQ as 51% in Indian cadavers and 3% of those cases had dual insertion at 4th and 5th matarsals. Moreover, Demir (2015) described the insertion pattern of PDQ as 2 different types; single tendon attached on the 5th metatarsal bone and two separated tendons attached on different sites of 5th metatarsal bone⁽³⁵⁾ (table 2.3).



Figure 2. 3 The peroneus digiti quinti muscle (PDQ); PB: peroneus brevis tendon, PT: peroneus tertius tendon, EDL: extensor digitorum longus tendon (Demir et al. (2015))⁽³⁵⁾



Authors Origin Insertion Nationality Number of Prevalence (%(n)) specimens - Dorsal digital expansion of 5th toe 100 51(51) Jadhav et Peroneus Indian al. (2013)⁽³⁶⁾ brevis - Extensor tendon tendon slip - Base of proximal phalanx of 5th toe - Head of 5th metatarsal - 2 seperated tendon attach on shaft of 4th metatarsal and head of 5th metatarsal Demir et al. Peroneus - Dorsolateral at base of 5th Turkish 25 32(8) (2015)(35) brevis metatarsal ridge of 5th - Dorsolateral at tendon metatarsal - Dorsolateral of 5th toe (proximal and middle phalanges) - Lateral to extensor digitorum longus and extend to 5th toe - 2 separate tendons attached to dorsolateral of 4th metatarsal and dorsomedial of 5th metatarsal

Table 2. 3 Previous studies of the origin, insertion, nationality and prevalence of

peroneus digiti quinti muscle

Other accessory muscles

Tubb et al. (2014) had reported an accessory muscle called, peroneotalocalcaneus muscle (Fig.2.4A). This muscle originated from the anterior intermuscular septum and peroneus longus muscle and inserted on the superior surface of the talus and calcaneus⁽³⁷⁾.

Fabrizio (2015) had reported an anomalous fibularis (peroneal) muscle (Fig. 2.4B). This muscle arose from the muscle belly of PL muscle in the proximal half and gave a long slender tendon, coursed posterior to lateral malleolus and inserted on the superficial aspect of inferior peroneal retinaculum⁽³⁸⁾.



Figure 2. 4 The other accessory muscles that originated from peroneus longus muscle; A: peroneotalocalcaneus muscle, B: anomalous fibularis (peroneal) muscle (modified from Tubb ei al. (2014) and Fabrizio (2015))^(37, 38)

The anatomy of superior peroneal tunnel and its retinaculum

Superior peroneal tunnel

The space that both peroneal tendons located at the posterior aspect of the lateral malleolus was called superior peroneal tunnel⁽³⁹⁾. The boundaries of superior peroneal tunnel were composed of the superior peroneal retinaculam (SPR) as the roof and retromalleolar groove of lateral malleolus as the floor. The floor of superior peroneal tunnel could be divided into 2 parts from lateral to medial; the osseous and non-osseous parts. The osseous part of the tunnel was retromalleolar groove of fibula while the non-osseous parts (medial part) was formed by lower part of posterior intermuscular septum of the leg⁽¹²⁾ (Fig. 2.5).



Figure 2. 5 The cross sectional structure and T-1 MR imaging of the superior peroneal tunnel (modified from Wang (2005) and Athavale (2011))^(12, 18)

The normal content of superior peroneal tunnel consisted of the PB and PL tendons. The course of peroneal tendons changed from proximal to distal. At the proximal part, the PB tendon lied medial to the PL tendon and some part of PB tendon overlapped on the PL tendon. At this level, the osseous part of superior peroneal tunnel contained only PL tendon. In the distal part, the PL tendon lied more superficial to PB tendon. The space of this tunnel was narrower in the distal part especially its osseous part ^(12, 18).

Several previous studies reported the additional structures in superior peroneal tunnel such as the muscle belly of the peroneus brevis, the accessory peroneal nerve, and supernumerary muscles (peroneus quartus muscle) ^(7, 12, 13, 18). The additional structures in superior peroneal tunnel could decrease the space of the superior peroneal tunnel. Although the contours of retromalleolar groove of fibula was primarily concave surface, convex and flat contour were also present as well. Therefore, the contour of retromalleolar groove was one of the possible factors that could decrease the superior peroneal tunnel space ^(7, 12).

The present of the additional structures and the variation of retromalleolar groove contour were not only the related factors to decrease the superior peroneal tendon space but also cause the peroneal tendon disorders as well. The anatomy of the superior peroneal retinaculum

The superior fibular retinaculum or superior peroneal retinaculum (SPR) was a fibrous band located superior to peroneus longus and peroneus brevis tendon as the roof of the superior peroneal tunnel^(12, 18, 39). The standard textbook of anatomy, Moore et al. (2014) described that "the SPR is the retinaculum spans between the distal tip of fibula and the calcaneus" while Standring et al. (2014) described that the SPR also attached to the deep transverse fascia of the leg^(20, 21).

Previous study of the anatomy of SPR by Davis (1994) described the morphology of SPR into 5 types based on their attachments and insertion patterns⁽⁴⁰⁾. The detail of each type was shown in table 2.4 and figure 2.6.

Туре	Definition		
Type I	The SPR originated from lateral malleolus and divided into 2 bands then		
	insert at the lateral border of calcaneal tendon and lateral wall of		
	calcaneus		
Type II	The SPR originated from lateral malleolus and divided into 2 bands then		
	insert at the lateral wall of the calcaneus		
Type III	The SPR originated from lateral malleolus and insert at the lateral border		
	of calcaneal tendon		
Type IV	The SPR originated from lateral malleolus and insert at the lateral wall of		
	calcaneus		
Type V	The SPR originated from lateral malleolus and most of fibers insert loosely		
	at fibrous tissue (pretendinous fascia) of the lateral border of calcaneal		
	tendon and had small fiber insert at lateral wall of calcaneus		

Table 2. 4 The type of superior peroneal retinaculum⁽⁴⁰⁾



Figure 2. 6 The types of superior peroneal retinaculum based on their attachment and insertion pattern (Davis (1994))⁽⁴⁰⁾

Several previous studies revealed that SPR coursed parallel to the calcaneofibular ligaments of the ankle joint^(30, 40). Therefore, the SPR played a vital role as a stabilizer to maintain the peroneus longus and peroneus brevis tendon to fit in their positions at the ankle level and assisted the lateral ligaments of ankle joint to maintain its stability^(5, 7, 30). The laxity or deficit of the SPR could be a possible cause of the peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation. The instability of SPR can lead to the recurrent symptom of the subluxation/dislocation⁽²¹⁾. In addition, the present of the peroneus brevis muscle belly and the supernumerary muscle, PQ, could over stretch the SPR at the superior peroneal tunnel. This situation was the indirect cause of peroneal tendon subluxation⁽⁷⁾.

The anatomy of the inferior peroneal tunnel and its retinaculum

The inferior peroneal tunnel was covered by the inferior peroneal retinaculum (IPR) which was the continuity of inferior extensor retinaculum. IPR could divided into 2 layers; the superficial layer coursed posteriorly and inferiorly then inserted at the lateral surface of os calsi just above the posterolateral tubercle of calcaneus⁽²¹⁾. The
deep layer of IPR attached to the peroneal tubercle, therefore, the inferior peroneal tunnel were separated into upper and lower tunnels for the PB and PL tendons respectively^(22, 39). After the peroneal tendons exited this tunnel, they would insert to their insertion sites(Fig. 2.7).



Figure 2. 7 The anatomy of superior and inferior peroneal retinaculum showed the continuity of inferior peroneal retinaculum from inferior extensor retinaculum to insert at the posterolateral tubercle of calcaneus (Moore (2014))⁽²⁰⁾

The peroneal tendon disorders

The peroneal tendon disorders consisted of peroneal tendon tenosynovitis, peroneal tendon tear or disruption ^(4, 6, 9, 14), and peroneal tendon subluxation and dislocation^(4, 5, 7). The mechanism of the injury could occur by the eccentric contraction of peroneus muscles during ankle dorsiflexion position. This pathomechanisms was similarly to the inversion mechanism of lateral ankle sprain. Moreover, most of the patients always complained about the posterior lateral malleolar pain, with popping or snapping sound during movement or feeling instability at the lateral ankle similarly to the lateral ligamentous complex sprain^(7, 10). Therefore, peroneal tendon disorders might be misdiagnosed as the lateral ankle sprain^(5, 7, 8). Only 60% of cases could be diagnosed as the peroneal tendon disorders at the first time evaluation⁽¹⁰⁾. The misdiagnosed or untreated the peroneal tendons subluxation would predisposed to the recurrence of peroneal tendon dislocation⁽⁵⁾.

As mention before, the additional structures could decrease the space of superior peroneal tunnel. Therefore, the presence of the peroneus brevis muscle belly and peroneus quartus muscle could over stretch the SPR at the superior peroneal tunnel. In this condition, the laxity or deficit of the SPR would be occurred. These might be a possible cause of SPR tear, and lead to the peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation. The instability of SPR can lead the recurrent symptom of the subluxation/dislocation⁽²⁴⁾. Moreover, Roth (2009) stated that the peroneal tendon subluxation could also cause the peroneus brevis tendon tear⁽⁷⁾.

The peoneal tendon tears

The peroneal tendons tear or attrition was reported as the acute mechanical injury or repetitive injury such as traumatic injury, mechanical irritation or attrition within retromalleolar groove, subluxation of SPR, incompetent of SPR and ankle instability^(4, 9, 27). Bassett and Speer (1993) stated that the degree of ankle plantarflexion (15 – 25 degrees) had association to impinge the peroneus brevis tendon to distal tip of fibula⁽³³⁾. In this angle, the PB tendon was risk for injury. The mechanical injury was not the only factor caused the peroneal tendon tear or attrition, the presence of additional structures, the peroneus brevis muscle belly, in superior peroneal tunnel could cause the peroneal tendon tear as well. Anyway, previous study of Unlu et al. (2010) revealed that the low-level lying or distal extension of peroneus brevis muscle belly did not show the relationship to the peroneus brevis tendon tear. In contrast, the proximal extension had a potential relation to the peroneus brevis tendon tears (14, 31)

Zammit et al. (2003) stated that there were several anatomic factors associated with peroneal tendon tear such as the prominence of retrotrochlear eminence and the thinning or laxity of the SPR⁽²⁷⁾. Moreover, the presence of the peroneus quartus muscle might have a potential to create the attrition or tear of peroneal tendon at the retromalleolar groove^(1, 25, 31).

Sobel et al. (1990) classified peroneal tendon tear or attrition into 4 grades depended on their severe of pathology as described in table 2.5 (Fig. 2.8).

grade	Description
1	The thinned or flattened of peroneus brevis tendon
	Partial-thickness split, the length of tear less than 1 cm
	Full-thickness split, the length of tear around 1 – 2 cm
IV	Full-thickness split, the length of tear longer than 2 cm

Table 2. 5 <u>The Sobel' classification of peroneal tendon tear</u>⁽¹⁾



Figure 2. 8 The peroneus brevis tendon tear in patients. A; grade I tear with thinning of peroneus brevis tendon, B; grade II tear with partial tear of peroneus brevis tendon, C; grade III tear with full-thickness of tear length 1 - 2 cm, D; grade IV tear with full-thickness of tear length more than 2 cm (Coughin (2014))⁽⁴⁾

The peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation

The peroneal tendon subluxation/ dislocation were the condition that the peroneal tendons were misalignment⁽¹⁰⁾ (Fig. 2.9). Peroneal tendon subluxation/ dislocation could be occurred by several conditions including insufficient or tear of the SPR, shallow of retromalleolar groove, misdiagnosed of peroneal tendon disorders and unsuccessful conservative treatments of peroneal tendon disorders^(4, 5, 7).

The mechanism of injury of the SPR was occurred when the ankle was in dorsiflexion position while the peroneal tendon were eccentrically contraction $^{(5, 7)}$. However, the degree of plantarflexion was also one of the factors that related to this injury. During full inversion, the SPR is protected when the ankle plantarflexion more than 25° (³³⁾. The degree of subluxation of the peroneal tendons were related to the levels of injury to SPR and could be classified into 4 grades as described in table 2.6 (⁷).

Grade	Description								
1	The peroneus longus tendon was anteriorly subluxed on the								
	fibrocartilagenous ridge, the superior peroneal retinaculum (SPR) was still								
	attached to the periosteum on the posterior aspect of the fibula but								
	separated from the fibrous lip and lateral malleolus								
Ш	The distal portion of the dense fibrous lip on the posterior edge of the								
	lateral malleolus was elevated with the retinaculum, the stability of								
	peroneal tendons decreased								
Ш	A thin fragment of the bone was avulsed with the retinaculum from its								
	anterior attachment								
IV	The SPR was completely elevated from its posterior attachment and the								
	SPR was usually found lying deep to the peroneal tendons								

Table 2. 6 Superior peroneal retinaculum disorders classification (17, 41, 42)



Figure 2. 9 The cross sectional diagram at the retromalleolar groove of peroneal tendon subluxation; grade 1: the tendon stripped anteriorly to the lateral malleolus while SPR still attached to the periosteum, grade II: the fibrous lip of SPR elevated from lateral malleolus, grade III: avulsion of the SPR and small fragment of lateral malleolus, grade IV: completed avulsion of the SPR from insertion and peroneal tendons lied superficial to its, 1; peroneus brevis tendon, 2; peroneus longus tendon, *F*; fibrocartilagenous ridge, *R*; SPR (Roth (2010))⁽⁷⁾

Treatments for peroneal tendon disorders

The treatment of peroneal tendon disorders consisted of conservative and surgical treatments. The conservative treatments composed of medications, reduce activities, shoe modifications, custom-made insoles, lateral heel wedges and immobilization. However, there was only 50% success from these treatments^(7, 10). Moreover, the conservative treatments had no potential to prevent the recurrent symptom of the peroneal tendon dislocation⁽¹⁶⁾.

After unsuccessful conservative treatments, the surgical treatment would be required. There were several procedures of surgical treatments for peroneal tendons tears. The choosing surgical technique was depended on the patient condition. However, the superior technique had not been documented ^(5, 10).

The surgical treatments of peroneal tendon tear

The surgical technique for peroneal tendon tear consisted of resection and tubulization technique⁽⁴⁾. The patient would be placed in prone position and general anesthesia will be applied. The surgical incision was created posterior to the lateral malleolus to avoid the sural nerve injury. Then, the SPR was identified and incised at least 2-3 millimeters even it was intact. The morphology of the tear would be classified to single or multiple tear. Then, the surgical techniques would be applied depending on its pathology. Whether, the multiple tears or flayed edge were presented, the resection technique would be applied to cut these tears (Fig. 2.10 B and C). While, tubulization for peroneus brevis tendon aimed to strengthen the tendon by stitching teared tendon together (Fig. 2.10 D and E). This technique would be used in both the flatten tendon or thick single tear⁽¹⁹⁾. The low-level lying of peroneus brevis muscle or present of the PQ would be excised ^(4, 9, 10, 22). The groove deepening technique would be applied in the patients with shallow retromalleolar groove.



Figure 2. 10 The surgical techniques for peroneus brevis tendon tear; A: the peroneus brevis tendon tear, B: the resection area of the flayed tendon, C: the tendon after resection, D: the flatten or single thickness teared tendon, E: the tubularizing techniques for repairing tendon (Coughlin et al. (2014))⁽⁴⁾

The surgical treatments of peroneal tendons subluxation and dislocation

Nowadays, several surgical techniques for peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation had been described including the rerouting tendon beneath calcaneofibular ligament, reconstruction or soft tissue repairing and soft tissue repairing with fibular groove deepening. Anyway, the superior procedure had not been described⁽⁵⁾. The surgical treatments were more successful in acute dislocation more than in chronic or recurrent cases⁽⁷⁾. All of the surgical procedures for the peroneal tendon subluxation/dislocation repair had to incise the SPR 2-3 millimeters posterior to fibula even the SPR was intact. After repairing the pathology, the SPR was reattached by suturing.

The surgical techniques for peroneal tendon subluxation/ dislocation ^(4, 7, 10)

1. Reattachment of the superior peroneal retinaculum

The anatomical reattachment of SPR aimed to reattach the SPR which was the primary stabilizer of peroneal tendon in its anatomical position. The patient was placed in prone position under the general anesthesia. Then, 5 – 7 centimeter was incised posterior to the lateral malleolus around 1 centimeter to avoid sural nerve injury (5 centimeter proximal and 2 centimeter distal to distal tip of fibula). The SPR was identified and the surgeon created the hole at the lateral malleolus, then, reattached the SPR through the holes^(4, 10). Anyway, this technique was suitable for acute cases more than chronic cases (Fig. 2.11).



Figure 2. 11 The reattachment of the superior peroneal retinaculum technique; A: the incision applied posterior to lateral malleolus, B: the SPR incised at least 2-3 mm and relocated peroneal tendon beneath retromalleolar groove, C: reattach the SPR through the hole. (Coughlin et al. (2014))⁽⁴⁾

2. Reconstruction or soft tissue repairing (soft-tissue transfers)

The soft-tissue transfers was described by Jones et al. (1932). This technique was used the slip of calcaneal tendon to stabilize and to fix the peroneal tendons in their position (Fig. 2.12). Anyway, the using of calcaneal tendon slip could cause the weakness of gastrosoleus muscles. Therefore several modified techniques for reducing the complication were described such as the use of other tendons (peroneus brevis, plantaris or PQ)^(4, 10).



Figure 2. 12 The soft-tissue transfer technique that described by Jones et al. (Coughlin et al. (2014))

3. Bone block procedure

The bone block procedure was the surgical procedure that used the fragment of the bone as a donor. The fragment of calcaneus which the attachment of calcaneofibular ligament would be used. The peroneal tendons would be relocated beneath retromalleolar groove and fix these fragments with internal fixator (Fig. 2.13).

Anyway, the complications including infection, ankle joint stiffness, graft fracture, non-union, chronic pain, recurrent subluxation and tendon irritation from the internal fixator were reported^(4, 10).

CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY



Figure 2. 13 The bone block procedure with using fragment of calcaneus which the attachment of calcaneofibular ligament; A: the anteriorly tendon dislocation, B: the bone block mobilized from calcaneus, C: the bone block was fixed by internal fixator after tendon was relocated (Coughlin et al. (2014))⁽⁴⁾

4. Tendon-rerouting techniques

The course of SPR was paralleled to calcaneofibular ligament, therefore, this ligament was a candidate as a graft donor for rerouting peroneal tendon in their position. The tendon rerouting technique was to relocate the peroneal tendons beneath the retromalleolar groove by using the calcaneofibular ligament. There were 2 types of rerouting techniques including using of the strip of the calcaneofibular ligament (Fig. 2.14 A and B) and the cutting of the peroneal tendons (Fig. 2.14 C and D).

A strip of calcaneofibular ligament was cut at its origin (the attachment at the distal fibula) then, the peroneal tendon was relocated. The calcaneofibular ligament was reattached to the distal fibula by internal fixator. The lateral ankle instability and internal fixator irritation were the complication of this technique. Moreover, peroneus muscle weakness was the result of cutting the peroneal tendon and relocated beneath the calcaneofibular ligament⁽⁴⁾.



Figure 2. 14 The rerouting technique beneath calcaneofibular ligament; A & B: the strip of calcaneofibular ligament was cut and reattached by using internal fixator, C & D: the peroneal tendons were cut and reattached after relocated beneath the calcaneofibular ligament (Coughlin et al. (2014))⁽⁴⁾

ุหาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย

5. Groove deepening procedure

The aimed of the fibular groove deepening was to improve the stability of the peroneal tendons^(4, 43). This technique would be applied to the patient with convex or flat contour of retromalleolar groove. After removing the cancellous bone, the peroneal tendons was relocated and the SPR was reattached (Fig. 2.15). Kollias and Ferkel (1997) reported the complication after using this technique including suture abscesses and chronic pain but the recurrent symptoms were not presented⁽⁴³⁾. Other complications also reported such as redislocation, sural nerve injury, decrease range of motion in ankle joint and friction of the tendon after the repair⁽⁴⁾.



Figure 2. 15 The groove deepening technique (Coughlin et al. (2014))⁽⁴⁾

As aforementioned, the successful outcome of the surgical procedure will not only depend on the surgical technique, but also the anatomical knowledges. The knowledge of the pattern of the SPR will be useful in the reattachment of the SPR in anatomical position to avoid the redislocation of the peroneal tendons. To improve the stability of the peroneal tendons, groove deepening technique will be applied in the patient with flat or convex contour of the retromalleolar groove. According to the present of the supernumerary muscle in the superior peroneal tunnel, this muscle will be excised for increasing the space of superior peroneal tunnel. Therefore, the knowledge of the anatomical structures and variations in this region will be beneficial for the diagnosis, management, and improvement of the surgical outcomes.

CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

Chapter III

Materials and Methods

Target population and sample population

This current study used the embalmed cadavers in the department of anatomy, faculty of medicine, Chulalongkorn University, Thailand

Inclusion criteria

- The cadavers were completely preserved in all processes without any trauma of the lower extremities

Exclusion criteria

- The cadavers who had deformity of foot except hallux valgus and flat foot Sample size determination

From the pilot study of 20 legs, the standard deviation of the horizontal distance from the inferior tip of lateral malleolus to the lateral border of calcaneal tendon was 5.24 millimeter. This current study used the sample size equation from the descriptive study ⁽⁴⁴⁾ and confidence interval set as 95%

$$n = \frac{z^2 (1-\frac{\alpha}{2}) \sigma^2}{n} / d^2$$
When $z^2 (1-\frac{\alpha}{2}) = 1.96$ (two tail)
 σ^2 = variance = $(SD)^2 = 5.24$
 d = acceptable error = 1 mm
Therefore
 $n = \frac{(1.96^2)(5.24^2)}{(1^2)}$
 $n = 105.48$

The calculated sample size was at least 105.48 legs. Therefore, 109 cadaveric legs were included in this current study.

Materials and Methods

Tools

- 1. Dissection instruments i.e. blade, forceps, scissors, probe and clamps/wirer
- 2. Machinist square and bandages (for adjust the ankle to neutral position)
- 3. Digital vernier caliper (GuangLu ® 0-100 mm)

- 4. Goniometer
- 5. Pins
- 6. Scale
- 7. Digital camera

Research framework



Methods

Dissections

 All cadavers were dissected in prone position. The incision was placed around 15 centimeters proximal to lateral malleolus from anterior compartment of the leg to medial border of calcaneal tendon. The incision continued distally until the shaft of metatarsal bones (Fig. 3.1A and B).



Figure 3. 1 The cadaveric leg before dissection (A) and the cadaveric leg after removing the skin from the anterior compartment of the leg to medial border of calcaneal tendon (B)

- Sural nerve and small saphenous vein Lateral malleolus
- 2. After removing the skin, sural nerve and small saphenous vein were distracted anteriorly (Fig. 3.2).

Figure 3. 2 The distraction of the sural nerve and small saphenous vein

- 3. The superior peroneal retinaculum (SPR) and inferior peroneal retinaculum (IPR) were identified.
- 4. The foot was adjusted in neutral position by releasing the calcaneal tendon with Z-plasty lengthening technique. Then, the foot was placed in machinist square and fixed with bandages to correct ankle position (Fig. 3.3).



Figure 3. 3 The foot was adjusted in neutral position by machinist square and bandages

5. The inferior tip of lateral malleolus was marked by pin (purple dot), boundaries of the SPR, IPR and lateral border of calcaneal tendon were marked by pins (Fig. 3.4).



Figure 3. 4 The boundaries of the SPR, IPR and lateral border of calcaneal tendon were marked by pins

Observations

- 1. The type of SPR was identified as described by Davis (1994)⁽⁴⁰⁾. The attachments of SPR were described.
- The attachments of the IPR were described. The presence of the prominence of the peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence were identified and confirmed by palpation.
- 3. The SPR was cut at the attachment at the lateral malleolus and flipped to the lateral border of the calcaneal tendon, then, the content and extraordinary structures of the superior peroneal tunnel were observed.
- 4. The **presence of the accessory muscle** i.e. PQ, PDQ and other accessory muscle were identified. The origin and insertion of those muscles were described.
- 5. The **low level lying of peroneus brevis muscle** in the superior peroneal tunnel was identified.

- 6. The presence of peroneus longus and peroneus brevis tendon tear were identified and classified into grade I-IV as described by Sobel et al.^(1, 40)
- 7. The **contour of retromalleolar groove** was described as convex, flat, concave, irregular and others contour.

Measurements

The measurements were taken by digital Vernier caliper (GuangLu ® 0-100 mm). The parameters were measured from 1. to 14. and repeated 3 times as an day interval.

- 1. Horizontal distance from the lateral border of calcaneal tendon to inferior tip of fibula (A) was measured. (Fig. 3.5)
- 2. Horizontal distance (B) and vertical distance (C) from most prominent part of the peroneal tubercle to the inferior tip of fibula were measured. (Fig. 3.5)



Figure 3. 5 The horizontal distance from lateral border of calcaneal tendon (A), the horizontal distance from peroneal tubercle (B) and vertical distance from peroneal tubercle (C) to the inferior tip of lateral malleolus were measured by digital Vernier caliper.

- 3. The width of the SPR at the lateral malleolus (origin) (D) and width of the SPR at posterior intermuscular septum (insertion) (E) were measured. Then, the pins were marked at the mid-point of both attachments of the SPR as shown in figure 3.6.
- 4. The length of the SPR was determined by the distance between the mid-point of both borders (origin and insertion) (F). If there is a distal band of SPR, the width of both attachments (G and H) and the distance between mid-points (I) was measured (Fig. 3.6).



Figure 3. 6 The width at the origin (D) and insertion (E) of the SPR were measured, then, the distance between mid-point of origin and insertion was measured (F). If the distal band present, the width at the origin (G) and insertion (H) and the distance between mid-point of origin and insertion (I) was measured

37

<u>SPR</u>

5. The width at the middle part of SPR was measured from the mid-point of the upper and lower borders of the SPR (J) (Fig. 3.7). If there is a distal band of SPR, the width at the middle part of SPR was measured (K).



Figure 3. 7 The width at the middle part of the SPR (J) was measured. If the distal band present, the width at middle part of distal band (K) was determined as well.

- 6. The Vertical (L) and horizontal (M) distances from the mid-point of the attachment of the SPR at lateral malleolus (origin) to inferior tip of distal fibula were measured as shown in figure 3.8A and B.
- 7. Vertical (N) and horizontal (O) distances from the mid-point of the attachment of the SPR at the posterior intermuscular septum (insertion) to inferior tip of the fibula were measured (Fig. 3.8 A and B).



Figure 3. 8 The vertical and horizontal distance from the mid-point of the attachment of the proximal bands of the SPR; L: the vertical distance from the mid-point of the origin to inferior tip of the fibula, N: the vertical distance from the mid-point of the insertion to inferior tip of the fibula, M: the horizontal distance from the mid-point of the origin to inferior tip of the fibula, O: the horizontal distance of the mid-point of the insertion to the inferior tip of the fibula, O: the horizontal distance of the mid-point of the insertion to the inferior tip of the fibula

8. The angle of the attachment of the SPR and the horizontal axis was measured by standard goniometer (Fig. 3.9).



Figure 3. 9 The measurement of the angle of the attachments of SPR and the horizontal axis.

9. The thickness of the SPR at the mid-point of its length was measured both proximal and distal bands.

<u>IPR</u>

- 10. The width of the IPR which extends from the inferior extensor retinaculum (upper attachment) (P) and width of the IPR at the retrotrochlear eminence or other lateral wall of the calcaneus (lower attachment) (Q) were measured. Then, the pins were marked at the mid-point of both attachments of the IPR as shown in figure 3.10.
- 11. The length of the IPR was determined by the distance between the mid-point of both borders (upper and lower attachments) (R) (Fig. 3.10).
- 12. The width at the middle part of the IPR (S) was measured from the mid-point of the upper and lower borders of the IPR.



Figure 3. 10 The width at the upper attachment (P) and lower attachment (Q) of the IPR were measured, then, the distance between mid-point of upper and lower attachments of IPR (R) were measured. The width at middle part of the IPR (S) was measured between mid-point of upper and lower border of the IPR

- 13. The thickness of the IPR at the mid-point of its length was measured.
- 14. The angle of the attachments of the IPR and the horizontal axis was measured by standard goniometer (Fig. 3.11).



Figure 3. 11 The measurement of the angle of the attachments of SPR and the horizontal axis.



Case Record Form								
Faculty of Medicine, Chulalongkorn University								
Table NO Sex: 🗌 Male 🗌	Table NO Sex: 🗌 Male 🗌 Female Cadaveric Code: Age:							
Superior peroneal retinaculum								
(SPR)								
			Type III					
SPR had 2 band; proximal band inserted at lateral wall of	Buperior Buperior Tentor personal retinaculum SPR had 2 bands inserted at lateral w of calcaneus	rall SPR later	upprior errorad had single wid al border of c	Interior personal der band instalcaneal ter	alus al retinaculum serted at ndon			
calcaneus								
SPR had single band inserted at lateral wall of calcaneus	SPR had 2 band; proximal band insert loosely at pretendinous fascia of calcaneal tendon while distal band inserted at lateral wall of calcaneus	B	Uther					
Origin:								
Insertion:								
	Lt. (mm) 🗌 Rt. (mm)							
Parameter	rs	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	Average			
Horizontal distance from tip of fibula	to calcaneal tendon (A)							
Horizontal distance from tip of fibula to peroneal tubercle (B)								
Vertical distance from tip of fibula to								

Superior peroneal tunnel content

 \Box peroneus brevis tendon \Box peroneus longus tendon \Box accessory peroneal nerve \Box other

Superior peroneal retinaculum (SPR)

			🗌 Lt. ((mm) 🗌	nm) 🗌 Rt. (mm)			
		Relation	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	Average		
		to						
		fibular						
Par	ameters	tip						
Length from mid-point	proximal band (F)							
of origin to insertion	distal band (if present) (I)							
Length of upper border	proximal band							
from origin to insertion	distal band (if present)							
Length of lower border	proximal band							
from origin to insertion	distal band (if present)							
Width at the origin of	proximal band (D)							
SPR	distal band (if present) (G)							
Width at the insertion	proximal band (E)							
of SPR	distal band (if present) (H)							
Width at the middle	proximal band (J)							
part of SPR	distal band (if present) (K)		0					
Thickness at the middle	proximal band		1					
part of SPR	distal band (if present)							
Vertical distance from	proximal band (L)	Above	, 181					
tip of fibula to mid-		Below						
point of origin of SPR	distal band (if present)	Above	SITY					
		Below						
Horizontal distance	proximal band M)	Above						
from tip of fibula to		Below						
mid-point of origin of	distal band (if present)	Above						
SPR		Below						
Vertical distance from	proximal band (N)	Above						
tip of fibula to mid-		Below						
point of insertion of	distal band (if present)	Above						
SPR		Below						
Horizontal distance	proximal band (O)	Above						
from tip of fibula to		Below						
mid-point of insertion	distal band (if present)	Above						
of SPR		Below						

			🗌 Lt. (mm) 🗌 Rt. (mm)					
			Relation	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	Average	
			to					
			fibular					
	Par	ameters	tip					
Angle between SDR and		proximal band	Above					
horizontal	avis (avis –		Below					
tio of fibu		distal band (if present)	\Box \uparrow					
tip of fibuta)			$\Box \downarrow$					
Peroneus brevis muscle fiber at superior peroneal] present	a	bsent	
retinaculum					•			
Note:			9 21					

Inferior peroneal retinaculum (IPR)

	🗌 Lt. (mm) 🗌 Rt. (mm)					
Parameters	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	Average		
Origin:						
Insertion:						
Length from origin to insertion (R)						
Width at origin of IPR (P)						
Width at insertion of IPR (Q)						
Width at middle part of IPR (S)	a el					
Thickness at middle part of IPR	0					
Angle between fibula and IPR \Box	ISITY					
$\Box \downarrow$	•					
Note:						

Contour of retromalleolar groove, peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence

Observation	🗌 Lt. (mm) 🗌 Rt. (mm)				
Contour of retromalleolar groove	□ concave □ flat □ convex □ irregular □ other				
Peroneal tubercle	🗆 prominent 🛛 flat 🗆 other				
Retrotrochlear eminence	🗆 prominent 🛛 flat 🗆 other				

Peroneal tendon pathology (if present)

	🗌 Lt. (mm) 🗌 Rt. (mn			mm)
Parameters	1 st	2 nd	3 rd	Average
Peroneus brevis				
Low level lying of peroneus brevis in superior peroneal tunnel	D prese	ent	🗌 abser	nt
PB tendon tear (Sobel et al.) (if present)				
🗌 Grade I 🗌 Grade II 🗌 Grade III 🗌 Grade IV				
Length of PB tear				
Peroneus longus				
Low level lying of peroneus longus in superior peroneal tunnel	🗌 prese	ent	🗌 abser	nt
PL tendon tear (Sobel et al.) (if present)				
Grade I Grade II Grade III Grade IV				
Length of PL tear				
Note:				
Accessory Peroneal muscle	-			
Observation	📙 Lt. (mm) 🗌	Rt. (mm)	
Peroneus quartus muscle (PQ) (if present)				
Origin				
Insertion	3)			
Peroneus digiti quinti muscle (if present)	7			
Origin				
Insertion จหาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาล	รัย			
Other accessory peroneal muscle (if present)	01714			
Origin	2111			
Insertion				

45

Data analysis

The statistical analysis in each parameter was performed by SPSS software version 22.0. Mean and standard deviation for each parameter were obtained. To determine the distribution of the sample population, Shaptro-Wilk test of normality was used. Comparisons of the parameters between genders and sides were done using unpaired t-test in parameter with normally distributed data and Mann-Whitney U test in parameter with non-normally distributed data. The statistical significance in this study will use $\mathbf{\alpha} = 0.05$ (p-value < 0.05).

The statistical analysis for evaluating the association relationship of the peroneus brevis tendon tear, the present of peroneus quartus muscle and the contour of the retromalleolar groove will be the Chi-square (for parametric test) or Kolmogorov – Smirnov sign test (for nonparametric test). The intraclass correlation coefficient (ICC) was used to determine the intra-tester reliability.

Ethical consideration

This study has been approved by the human research ethics committee and the director of King Chulalongkorn Memorial hospital (IRB NO.110/61).

Marcine A

Chapter IV Results

The formaldehyde-embalmed cadaveric legs from 55 males and 54 females provided by Department of Anatomy, Faculty of Medicine, Chulalongkorn University were used. All cadavers had no gross evidence of lower extremity injuries and foot deformity. The average age of the cadavers was 77.44 \pm 12.91 (34 - 94) years (age rage 34-94). The demographic data was shown in table 4.1.

Daramators	Mean ± SD (range)					
Parameters	Male	Female	Total			
Age	78.91 ± 10.14	75.88 ± 15.25	77.44 ± 12.91	0.227		
	(50 - 93)	(34 - 94)	(34 - 94)			
Horizontal distance from	42.31 ± 5.18	39.99 ± 4.04	41.16 ± 4.86	0.012		
calcaneal tendon to	(31.95 – 53.45)	(28.42 – 47.96)	(28.42 – 53.45)			
inferior tip of fibula		E E				
Horizontal distance from	8.12 ± 4.29	6.16 ± 3.68	7.15 ± 4.10	0.012		
tip of fibula to peroneal	(1.50 – 18.57)	(0.00 – 19.09)	(0.00 - 19.09)			
tubercle CHUL	ALONGKORN	JNIVERSITY				
Vertical distance from	15.11 ± 3.78	13.94 ± 2.95	14.53 ± 3.43	0.076		
tip of fibula to peroneal	(3.45 – 25.78)	(7.68 – 19.60)	(3.45 – 25.78)			
tubercle						

Table 4.	1	The	demogra	phic	data	of	the	cadave	ers
----------	---	-----	---------	------	------	----	-----	--------	-----

The intra-tester reliability on the data extraction indicated excellent reliability (ICC (3,1) = 0.970 - 0.999).

The anatomy of the superior peroneal retinaculum and its tunnel Characteristic, origin and the attachment of the SPR

The SPR had a common origin which extended from the fibrocartilagenous ridge of the posterolateral surface of the lateral malleolus but its insertion was varied. The SPR might be a single band or split into proximal and distal bands to insert on the posterior intermuscular septum and lateral wall of calcaneus. The direction of proximal band might be slightly upward or parallel to the horizontal axis. In this study, the SPR could be classified into 3 types according to their insertion patterns (**Fig. 4.1-4.3**). Type I consisted of double bands while type II and type III had single band. Detail of the characteristic of each type was described in table 4.2. However, type I could be divided into to 2 subtypes: type Ia (**Fig. 4.1A-4.1B**) and type Ib (**Fig. 4.1C-4.1D**) based on the site of splitting into proximal and distal bands. The splitting site of type Ia was closed to its origin while that of type Ib was split at its middle part. The prevalence of each type was shown in Table 4.3. The most common was type Ib and the least common was type II.



Table 4. 2 The types of SPR

45 (41.28)

14 (12.84)

Type III

Туре	Definition							
Type I	Type Ia The SPR originated from fibrocartilagenous ridge of the posterolatera							
		surface of lateral	malleolus and spl	lit near its origin	into 2 bands: the			
		proximal band co	oursed slightly upw	vard and the dis	stal bands coursed			
		slightly downward	l to insert on the p	oosterior intermu	uscular septum and			
		lateral wall of cal	caneus respectively	ý				
	Type Ib	The SPR originate	ed from fibrocartila	genous ridge of	the posterolateral			
		surface of lateral	malleolus and divid	ded at its middle	e part into 2 bands:			
		the proximal cour	sed slightly upward	d or parallel to th	ne horizontal plane			
		and the distal b	ands coursed sligh	htly downward	I to insert on the			
		posterior interm	uscular septum	and lateral w	vall of calcaneus			
		respectively						
Type II	The SPR ori	ginated fibrocartil	agenous ridge of tl	he posterolatera	al surface of lateral			
	malleolus a	and coursed sligh	itly downward to	insert on the l	ateral wall of the			
	calcaneus		S.C.					
Type III	The SPR ori	iginated fibrocartil	agenous ridge of tl	he posterolatera	l surface of lateral			
	malleolus a	nd coursed slight	y upward or parall	el to the horizon	ntal plane to insert			
	on the post	erior intermuscula	ir septum					
				}				
Table 4. 3	The preval	ence of the SPF						
		จุหาลงกรถ	โมหาวิท (%) ล	ខ				
Туре	C	HULALONGK	Left UNIVER	SITY	Right			
	lotal	Male	Female	Male	Female			
Type la	14 (12.84)) 1 (0.92)	6 (5.50)	3 (2.75)	4 (3.67)			
Type Ib	48 (44.04) 13 (11.93)	12 (11.01)	8 (7.34)	15 (13.76)			
Type II	2 (1.83)	-	2 (1.83)	-	_			

In addition, the symmetrical pattern was found in 29 (52.73%) cadavers. The prevalences were 15 (27.27%), 13 (23.64%) and 1 (1.82%) cadavers in type III, type Ib and type Ia, respectively. In cases of asymmetrical pattern, the characteristic features were type Ib with type III, type Ia with type Ib, type Ia with type III, type II with type III, type IIII

7 (6.42)

16 (14.68)

8 (7.34)

and type Ia with type II with a prevalence 12 (21.82%), 9 (16.36%), 2 (3.64%), 1 (1.82%) and 1 (1.82%) cadavers, respectively. One cadaver with only one leg of type III was not included for considering the symmetrical pattern.



Figure 4. 1 Type Ia (A and B) and Ib(C and D) of SPR had 2 bands inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum and lateral wall of calcaneus.: SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum; IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum; LM, lateral malleolus; SER, superior extensor retinaculum; IER, inferior extensor retinaculum.

Figure 4. 2 Type II of SPR (A and B) had single band inserted on lateral wall of the calcaneus.: SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum; IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum; LM, lateral malleolus; SER, superior extensor retinaculum; IER, inferior extensor retinaculum.

Figure 4. 3 Type III of SPR (A and B) inserted on posterior intermuscular septum.: SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum; IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum; LM, lateral malleolus; SER, superior extensor retinaculum; IER, inferior extensor retinaculum.

The length of the SPR

The results of the length of the SPR revealed that the mean length of all SPR which inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum and lateral wall of calcaneus were 22.05 ± 3.99 and 28.41 ± 5.49 mm., respectively. The distal band of type Ib was the longest, while type III was the shortest. Comparisons of SPR length between genders and sides revealed only the length of SPR which inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum in type Ib had statistically significance between genders (p=0.018).

Comparisons of the length of SPR in each type revealed no statistically significant difference except, the length of the SPR bands which inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum between types of the SPR revealed that only the type Ib and type III had the statistically significant difference (p=0.015). Detail morphometric data was tabulated in Table 4.4.

	Mean ± SD (range)								
SPR	Total	Left			Right				
	TOLAL	Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total		
Type la				- A					
- Proximal	22.86±5.06	32.83	20.60±2.64	22.34±5.21	26.69±6.33	20.91±3.10	23.39±5.26		
band	(16.51-32.83)		(16.51-23.90)	(16.51-32.83)	(19.86-32.35)	(16.70-24.11)	(16.70-32.35)		
- Distal	23.73±4.82	23.29	22.43±6.07	22.55±5.56	23.46±6.39	26.00±1.27	24.91±4.03		
band	(16.27-32.72)	HULALON	(16.27-32.72)	(16.27-32.72)	(17.16-29.94)	(24.64-27.72)	(17.16-29.94)		
Type lb									
- Proximal	22.80±3.18	24.16±4.16	21.76±1.96	23.01±3.45	23.78±2.30	21.92±3.09	22.57±2.93		
band	(16.24-31.15)	(18.45-31.15)	(18.97-25.22)	(18.45-31.15)	(20.34-27.76)	(16.24-26.29)	(16.24-27.76)		
- Distal	29.77±4.92	30.05±5.49	27.42±3.40	28.79±4.71	32.49±4.60	29.95±5.17	30.83±5.03		
band	(22.38-40.71)	(23.44-40.71)	(22.38-32.72)	(22.38-40.71)	(25.57-39.44)	(22.50-38.71)	(22.50-39.44)		
Type II									
	26.39±3.54	_	26.39±3.54	26.39±3.54	_	_	_		
	(23.89-28.89)	-	(23.89-28.89)	(23.89-28.89)	-	-	-		
Type III									
	20.82 ± 4.15	20.63 ± 3.51	19.63 ± 2.09	20.30 ± 3.09	21.59 ± 3.60	20.69 ± 7.15	21.27 ± 4.92		
	(13.13–36.64)	(15.68-26.60)	(16.47-21.56)	(15.68-26.60)	(14.68-27.61)	(13.13-36.64)	(13.13-36.64)		

Table 4. 4 The length of the SPR

The width of the SPR

The width of the SPR was obtained from origin, middle part and the insertion. Most of SPR had a common origin at the lateral malleolus with an average of 18.37 ± 4.13 (8.05-28.98) mm. The results of the width revealed that the widest part of the SPR at its origin was found in the proximal band of the type Ib with an average of 19.73 ± 3.40 (13.17-28.98) mm. as described in table 4.4. This follow in numerical order by type Ia, type III and type II with an average of 17.58 ± 3.36 (10.33-21.74), 17.31 ± 4.65 (8.05-26.22) and 14.53 ± 5.54 (10.62-18.45) mm., respectively.

The results of the width at the middle part revealed that the type Ib of the proximal band of the SPR was the widest part with an average 17.23 ± 3.35 (11.38-24.50) mm. (**Table 4.5**). In contrast, the widest part of the width of insertion was found in the type III with a mean length of 14.55 ± 3.42 (5.64-21.12) mm. The average width at insertion both inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum and lateral wall of calcaneus were 14.34 ± 3.80 and 10.32 ± 3.42 mm., respectively. In addition, the average of width at insertion of SPR inserted on the lateral calcaneus was lesser than those inserted on the lateral intermuscular septum. The data of the width were normally distributed and comparisons of the width of SPR between genders and sides in each type revealed only the proximal and distal band of width at insertion of type Ia had statistically significant difference (p = 0.018 and 0.040, respectively). Moreover, the width at origin of type Ib was statistically significant wider than type III (p = 0.004).

CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

ς	Mean ± SD (range)														
D.	Width at origin					Width at middle part					Width at insertion				
R	Left		Right		tal	Left		Right		tal	Left		Right		tal
	М	F	М	F	To	М	F	Μ	F	Ĺ	М	F	М	F	To
Туре	e la														
Je	20.73	15.88	18.61	18.57	17.58	18.02	13.35	20.04	17.44	16.29	7.82	11.45	15.89	16.53	13.59
		±3.93	±2.75	±2.59	±3.36		±3.51	±0.95	±4.96	±4.29		±3.93	±1.95	±4.61	±4.47
Ш		(10.33	(16.55	(14.98	(10.33		(9.07-	(19.42	(10.61	(9.07-		(6.31-	(13.66	(11.38	(6.31-
OXi		-	-	-	-		18.19)	-	-	22.51)		17.42)	-	-	21.70)
Pr		21.11)	21.74)	21.07)	21.74)			21.13)	22.51)				17.28)	21.70)	
	-	-	-	-	-	10.40	11.09	14.75	12.39	12.20	7.59	9.18±	12.12	12.33	10.48
Distal							±4.25	±4.48	±1.40	±3.58		3.38	±1.93	±2.49	±3.00
							(5.20-	(11.44	(10.46	(5.20-		(4.59-	(10.80	(8.76-	(4.59-
					4		15.34)	//	2 - `	19.85)		14.17)	-	14.49)	14.49)
1					Ŷ	2223	0	19.85)	13.72)				14.33)		
Type Ib															
mal	19.71	18.04	21.96	19.90	19.73	18.53	15.63	17.81	17.08	17.23	15.56	13.38	15.42	14.07	14.52
	±3.47	±2.74	±4.71	±2.47	±3.40	±3.84	±1.97	±3.40	±3.52	±3.35	±4.54	±2.30	±5.00	±3.55	±3.85
	(13.53	(13.17	(15.37	(12.45	(13.17	(12.25	(12.95	(11.38	(12.45	(11.38	(10.17	(8.23-	(7.96-	(9.53-	(7.96-
iXC	-	-	-	-	1	1 /F/18		1	S. Contraction of the second s	-	-	16.43)	24.38)	22.90)	24.38)
- Pro	27.71)	22.28)	28.98)	24.26)	28.98)	24.50)	18.64)	22.39)	24.26)	24.50)	24.07)				
	-	-	-	-	12-11	12.21	12.34	13.02	12.31	12.28	10.15	10.30	10.72	10.00	10.22
						±1.76	±3.69	±1.33	±2.19	±2.86	±2.91	±5.50	±2.06	±2.93	±4.25
stal					1	(9.17-	(8.43-	(11.16	(8.43-	(8.43-	(5.65-	(6.37-	(6.14-	(7.28-	(5.65-
Dis					1	14.80)	20.43)		16.39)	20.43)	15.04)	26.94)	12.88)	18.46)	26.94)
					<i>r</i>	Alexand and	~~~~~	15.38)	-						
Type II															
	-	14.53	-	- @	14.53	-	13.10		-	13.10	-	10.83	-	-	10.83
		±5.54		5	±5.54		±4.14		10	±4.14		±7.00			±7.00
		(10.62		~	(10.62		(10.17	-	15	(10.17		(5.88-			(5.88-
		-			1011-		-					15.78)			15.78)
		18.45)			18.45)		16.02)			16.02)					
Туре	e III							138							
	16.33	18.26	18.97	15.07	17.31	15.28	17.55	16.00	13.81	15.63	14.25	16.05	15.39	12.16	14.55
	±4.60	±3.85	±5.07	±3.85	±4.65	±3.71	±1.68	±4.66	±5.20	±4.18	±2.99	±1.85	±3.23	±4.58	±3.42
	(8.05-	(14.10	(11.49	(10.81	(8.05-	(8.84-	(15.27	(7.84-	(8.49-	(7.84-	(10.54	(13.72	(8.55-	(5.64-	(5.64-
	22.88)	-	-	-	26.22)	13.98)	-	22.37)	23.36)	23.98)	-	-	21.02)	17.85)	21.12)
		25.54)	Z6.ZZ)	20.08)			20.55)				Z1.1Z)	18.21)			

Table 4. 5 The width of the SPR
The angle of the SPR

The results of the angle of the SPR revealed that all of them were acute angle from the horizontal axis, except those aligned parallel to the horizontal axis. The prevalence of parallel alignment of SPR was found in 1 and 4 cases of type Ib, and type III, respectively. The average upward angle of all type was10.02±5.80 degrees. All distal bands coursed downward to their insertion on the lateral border of calcaneus. The mean downward angle of all type was 40.75±18.98 degrees. Detail of the angle of SPR in each type was described in table 4.6. This parameter was normally distributed.

Comparisons of the angle of SPR between genders and sides revealed no statistically significant difference. However, the angle of proximal band of type Ib was statistically lesser than type II (p=0.037).

-			Me Me	ean ± SD (rang	e)		
SPR	T , 1		Left	26 11 11 20		Right	
	lotal	Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total
Type la		/	Ø (concessions)				
- Proxima	12.21±6.69	15.33	13.72±9.08	13.95±8.31	9.56±5.75	11.17±4.24	10.48±4.55
l band	(3.33-26.00)	8	(4.67-26.00)	(4.67-26.00)	(3.33-14.67)	(5.67-14.67)	(3.33-14.67)
- Distal	29.76±17.8	38.67	33.89±20.14	34.57±18.47	16.33±8.72	31.41±20.15	24.95±17.13
band	3	1.000	(6.67-59.33)	(6.67-59.33)	(6.33-22.33)	(2.33-48.33)	(2.33-48.33)
	(2.33-59.33)	จหาลง	<u>เกรณ์มห</u>	<u>าวิทยา</u> ถ	ไย		
Type lb							
- Proxima	9.27±4.92	8.14±5.02	11.83±5.83	10.32±5.78	7.33±2.54	8.56±4.04	8.13±3.58
l band	(0.00-19.33)	(0.00-13.33)	(2.00-19.00)	(0.00-19.00)	(3.67-10.00)	(3.67-19.33)	(3.67-19.33)
- Distal	44.02±18.2	40.78±13.65	46.67±16.96	43.72±15.36	49.04±18.09	41.82±22.84	44.33±21.18
band	3	(14.67-67.00)	(10.67-73.33)	(10.67-	(30.00-	(3.67-83.33)	(3.67-83.33)
	(3.67-83.33)			73.33)	69.67)		
Type II							
	18.69±4.68		19 60 1 4 69	18.69±4.68			
	(15.38-	-	10.09±4.00	(15.38-	-	-	-
	22.00)		(15.30-22.00)	22.00)			
Type III							
	9.76±6.11	10.52±5.23	9.76±6.14	10.27±5.40	10.31±5.95	7.33±8.23	9.32±6.76
	(0.00-23.00)	(2.33-18.33)	(0.00-16.00)	(0.00-18.33)	(0.00-20.00)	0.00-23.00)	(0.00-23.00)

Table 4. 6 The angle of the SPR

The thickness of the SPR

The thickness of the SPR was measured at its middle part. The average thickness of all type both SPR which inserted on posterior intermuscular septum and lateral wall of calcaneus were 0.47±0.20 and 0.38±0.19 mm., respectively. The thickest SPR was found in the single band of type III while the thinnest of the SPR was found in the distal band of type Ib. This parameter was not normally distributed. Comparisons of the thickness of SPR between genders and sides showed no statistically significant difference (Table 4.7).

Table 4. 7	The thickne	ess of the S	SPR	2			
		Janara	Mea	an ± SD (ran	ge)		
SPR	Total		Left			Right	
	Totat	Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total
Type la			AR	SUN N B			
- Proxima	0.45±0.21	0.56	0.51±0.24	0.52±0.22	0.55±0.13	0.24±0.88	0.37±0.19
l band	(0.15-0.75)		(0.19-0.75)	(0.19-0.75)	(0.42-0.68)	(0.15-0.34)	(0.15-0.68)
- Distal	0.47±0.20	0.38	0.57±0.23	0.54±0.23	0.58±0.05	0.31±0.09	0.49±0.20
band	(0.24-0.82)		(0.27-0.82)	(0.27-0.82)	(0.54-0.64)	(0.24-0.44)	(0.24-0.82)
Type Ib		8		X			
- Proxima	0.46±0.20	0.43±0.20	0.46±0.19	0.46±0.18	0.57±0.33	0.39±0.15	0.46±0.22
l band	(0.17-0.98)	(0.17-0.86)	(0.19-0.80)	(0.17-0.86)	(0.22-0.98)	(0.20-0.63)	(0.20-0.98)
- Distal	0.33±0.17	0.33±0.17	0.26±0.14	0.29±0.15	0.33±0.20	0.39±0.20	0.37±0.19
band	(0.08-0.78)	(0.13-0.63)	(0.08-0.57)	(0.08-0.63)	(0.17-0.63)	(0.11-0.78)	(0.11-0.78)
Type II							
	0.73±0.25		0.73±0.25	0.73±0.25			
	(0.55-0.91)	-	(0.55-0.91)	(0.55-0.91)	-	-	-
Type III							
	0.47 ± 0.20	0.52 ±	0.44 ±	$0.49 \pm$	$0.46 \pm$	$0.45 \pm$	$0.46 \pm$
	(0.14.0.93)	0.20	0.28	0.22	0.18	0.17	0.17
	(0.14-0.23)	(0.28-0.87)	(0.14-0.93)	(0.14-0.93)	(0.22-0.76)	(0.27-0.73)	(0.22-0.76)

Table 4.	7 The	thickness	of the SPR	Ş
----------	-------	-----------	------------	---

The distance from midpoint of origin and insertion of the SPR and inferior tip of fibula

In order to locate the precise attachment of the SPR, the horizontal and vertical distances from the midpoint of the common origin and the insertion of the SPR to the inferior tip of fibula were obtained. The midpoint of the origin was always above the fibular tip but the midpoint of insertion was varied with the type. Since the proximal band of Type I and the single band of type III inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum, therefore, the midpoint of insertion would be always above the fibular tip. In contrast that of the distal band of type Ia, Ib and II which inserted on the lateral wall of calcaneus would be always below the fibular tip. The longest horizontal and vertical distances from midpoint of the origin were found in type Ia. The longest horizontal and vertical distance from midpoint of insertion was found in type Ia (Table 4.8). The X-coordinate represented the horizontal distance from the tip of fibula and the Ycoordinate represented the vertical distance from tip of fibula. The average coordinate (X, Y) of origin in all types was 7.26±3.15 (0.87-15.15) and 10.45±4.52 (1.69-26.23) mm. The coordinates (X, Y) of the insertion could be divided into 2 categories belonging to the insertion site. The average coordinates of SPR which inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum was 24.06±4.94 and 13.35±5.18, and those inserted on the lateral wall of calcaneus was 21.45±7.88 and 13.59±6.73 mm (Table. 4.8 and Fig. 4.4). The data were normally distributed and comparisons of the horizontal and vertical distances from mid-point of origin and insertion to inferior tip of fibula between genders and sides showed that only the vertical distance of type Ib at its origin and the vertical distance of type II lat its insertion was significantly different between sides (p = 0.003 and 0.014, respectively).

				N	1ean ± SD	(range) mm.				
Туре			Or	igin			Inse	rtion		
		X axis	р	Y axis	р	X axis	р	Y axis	р	
Type la										
	1+	8.63±3.43		12.32±5.36		26.09±5.50		14.31±2.87		
pu	Ll.	(5.41-13.69)	0.940	(4.55-18.82)	0.059	(20.18-32.64)	0.070	(10.75-19.45)	0.150	
l be	D+	9.02±4.00	0.649	20.04±8.13	0.058	25.62±5.87	0.079	19.19±7.94	0.152	
xima	nı.	(2.62-15.15)		(2.47-26.23)		(15.02-32.52)		(4.12-25.76)		
Pro	Total	8.82±3.59		16.18±7.73	3	25.85±5.47		16.75±6.27		
	Totat	(2.62-15.15)		(2.47-26.23)	1	(15.02-32.64)		(4.12-25.76)		
	1 +	NA	1000	NA E		22.94±8.00		14.48±4.64		
þ	Цι.	TW Y	Latores			> (14.90-35.14)	0 909	(7.20-22.38)	0 166	
bar	R†	NA	//	NA	NA	23.42±7.64	0.707	10.11±6.32	0.100	
iistal	Tre.		///			(11.58-35.13)		(1.53-20.03)		
	Total	NA		NA		23.18±7.52		12.30±5.79		
	Totat	4	" // //	ADDA	1111	(11.58-35.14)		(1.53-22.38)		
Type Ib			11	MASA	<u>a</u> ×					
Proximal band	1+	6.46±3.16	11	8.27±2.56	8 8	23.27±5.80		12.54±4.39		
	Цι.	(1.76-11.75)	10	(3.85-14.33)		(10.46-35.67)		(4.24-21.44)		
	Rt	6.74±2.56	0.749	10.70±2.77	0.003	24.10±3.96	0.568	14.68±5.07	0.125	
	Tre.	(2.36-11.64)	E	(4.21-15.98)	2	(16.57-32.37)		(5.32-22.64)		
	Total	6.59±2.86		9.43±2.91		23.67±4.97		13.56±4.80(4.		
	Totat	(1.76-11.75)		(3.85-15.98)	1	(10.46-35.67)		24-22.64)		
	1 +	NA		NΔ		20.94±8.39		14.19±6.94		
q	Lt.	298				(8.54-36.79)		(0.00-27.69)		
bar	R†	NA	N ONCKOPN		NA	20.95±7.70	0.439	13.73±7.19	0.824	
istal	Tre.					(11.17-38.66)		(0.00-31.79)		
	Total	NA		NA		20.94±7.98		13.97±6.99		
	Totat					(8.54-38.66)		(0.00-31.79)		
Type II										
and		7.31±1.48		9.13±5.13		26.22±7.53		4.48±2.48		
gle b	Lt.	(6.27-8.36)	NA	(5.51-12.76)	NA	(20.90-31.55)	NA	(2.73-6.24)	NA	
Sing										
Type III										
<i>,</i> ,		7.75±3.09		9.78±3.57		21.90±3.83		12.27±5.37		
_	Lt.	(2.73-14.65)		(1.69-17.33)		(13.85-29.14)		(1.06-20.34)		
and		7.22+3.39	0.587	9.79+3.02	0.988	25.51+4.81	0.014	12.64+4.00	0.790	
gle t	Rt.	(0.87-13.74)		(4.62-17.28)		(17.43-36.49)		(3.12-18.37)		
Sine		7.47+3.22		9.79+3.25		23.82+4 70		12.47+4.64		
	Total	(0.87-14 65)		(1.69-17 33)		(13.85-36.49)		(1.06-20.34)		
		(0.01 14.05)		(1.07 11.55)		(13.03 30.47)		(1.00 20.07)		

Table 4. 8 The horizontal and vertical distances from midpoint of SPR origin and insertion to the fibular tip

	Mean ± SD (range) mm.									
Туре		Or	rigin		Insertion					
	X axis	р	Y axis	р	X axis	p	Y axis	р		
All cases of SPR based on insertion site										
Posterior										
intermuscular	7.26±3.15		10.45±4.52		24.06±4.94		13.35±5.18			
internascatar	(0.87-15.15)		(1.69-26.23)		(10.46-36.49)		(1.06-25.76)			
septum										
Lateral wall of	NIA		NA		21.45±7.87		13.59±6.73			
calcaneus	INA				(8.54-38.66)		(0.00-31.79)			

X axis - the horizontal distance, Y axis - the vertical distance



Figure 4. 4 The coordinate of mid-point of SPR origin and insertion measured from the tip of fibula (*) in each type (X, Y axis). (a) Type Ia, (b) Type Ib, (c) Type II and (d) Type III: SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum, IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum, SER, superior extensor retinaculum.

The anatomy of the inferior peroneal retinaculum and its tunnel Characteristic, origin and the attachment of the IPR

The inferior peroneal retinaculum (IPR) was the continuation of the inferior extensor retinaculum. This band coursed posteriorly and inferiorly to insert on the peroneal tubercle and lateral wall of the calcaneus, respectively. Moreover, the extension of the IPR from its insertion to the lateral process of the calcaneus was observed in 34 cases (31.19%). Most of them were thick and had clear border separated from the surrounding fascia (**Fig. 4.5A & B**).



Figure 4. 5 The extension band of the IPR (**A and B**); PB - peroneus brevis tendon; PL - peroneus longus tendon; EIPR – extension band of inferior peroneal

JHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

Width of the IPR

The results of the width of the IPR revealed that the width at the middle part was the widest with the mean length of 14.50 ± 2.37 (6.68 - 21.34) mm. The width at the origin and the width at the insertion had the mean length of 13.29 ± 2.56 (5.83 – 20.92) and 10.10 ± 2.63 (4.59 - 19.17) mm, respectively. Therefore, the shape of IPR was spindle-like. The width at the origin and the width at the middle part in male were wider than female but width at the insertion was wider in female. These parameters were normally distributed. Comparisons between sides and genders revealed only the width at the origin of was significantly different between sides (p = 0.047) (**Table. 4.9**).

Length of the IPR

The average length of the IPR was 23.42 ± 3.54 (17.05-33.68) mm. These parameters were normally distributed. Comparisons of the length of IPR between genders and sides revealed no statistically significant difference (**Table. 4.9**).

	Mean ± SD (range)										
Parameters			Left			-	Right				
	Total	Male	Female	p	Total	Male	Female	р	Total		
Length from origin to insertion (mm.)	23.42 ± 3.54 (17.05- 33.68)	23.74±2.75 (20.27-29.93)	23.33±4.00 (18.20-33.68)	0.672	23.54 ± 3.41 (18.20- 33.68)	23.54±4.13 (17.05-33.08)	23.05±3.26 (17.57-28.27)	0.630	23.29 ± 3.70 (17.05- 33.08)		
Width at origin (mm.)	13.29 ± 2.56 (5.83- 20.92)	14.18±2.44 (9.47-20.92)	12.64±3.08 (8.22-20.68)	0.047 *	13.41 ± 2.86 (8.22 - 20.92)	13.57±2.16 (10.15-17.85)	12.78±2.31 (5.83-18.74)	0.197	13.17 ± 2.25 (5.83 - 18.74)		
Width at middle part (mm.)	14.50 ± 2.37 (6.68- 21.34)	14.86±2.44 (10.48-21.34)	14.49±2.19 (9.35-18.53)	0.555	14.68 ± 2.31 (9.35- 21.34)	14.32±2.64 (6.86-19.63)	14.32±2.27 (9.58-18.42)	0.993	14.32 ± 2.44 (6.86- 19.63)		
Width at insertion (mm.)	10.10 ± 2.63 (4.59- 19.17)	9.82±2.37 (6.28-14.56)	10.93±3.00 (5.17-19.17)	0.137	10.38 ± 2.74 (5.17- 19.17)	9.22±2.63 (4.59-13.99)	10.43±2.31 (5.86-14.94)	0.097	9.82 ± 2.53 (4.59- 14.94)		
Thickness (mm.)	0.48 ± 0.16 (0.20-0.87)	0.49±0.16 (0.21-0.82)	0.46±0.16 (0.20-0.82)	0.453	0.47 ± 0.16 (0.20-0.82)	0.50±0.15 (0.21-0.76)	0.46±0.16 (0.21-0.87)	0.322	0.49 ± 0.15 (0.21-0.87)		
Angle (degrees)	38.51 ± 7.07 (11.67- 54.00)	40.82±7.11 (26.33-54.00)	37.16±7.11 (23.33-48.33)	0.064	38.99 ± 7.28 (23.33- 54.00)	39.23±6.12 (26.00-48.67)	36.83±7.52 (11.67-47.67)	0.199	38.05 ± 6.89 (11.67- 48.67)		

Table 4. 9 The morphometric data of the inferior peroneal retinaculum

*statistically significant

Angle of the IPR

The results of the angle of IPR to the horizontal axis revealed that all of them were acute angle with an average of 38.51 ± 7.07 (11.67-54.00) degrees with normal data distribution (**Table. 4.9**). The mean angle in male specimens was wider than that of the female specimens, however this difference was not statistically significant. No statistically significant difference was demonstrated between side to side comparisons. **Thickness of the IPR**

From the observation, the IPR of the upper tunnel was very thin when compared to the IPR of the lower tunnel. Therefore, only the thickness of the IPR over the lower tunnel was measured. The thickest IPR was found in the right side of male specimens with an average of 0.50 ± 0.15 (0.21-0.76) mm. These parameters were normally distributed. Although, the mean thickness of male specimen was thicker than female specimen but there were no statistically significant differences between genders and sides (**Table. 4.9**).

The accessory peroneal muscle

Accessory peroneal muscles were found in 47 from 109 cases (44.04%). Coexistence of PQ and unusual accessory peroneal muscle was present in one male case. The number of PQ, PDQ and unusual peroneal muscles was found in 13 (11.93%), 33 (30.28%) and 2 (1.83%) cases, respectively.

The most frequent accessory peroneal muscle was PDQ (Figure 4.6). PDQ was found bilaterally in 12 (36.36%) cases (6 males and 6 females). All of them originated from the PB tendon but their insertions were varied as shown in Table 4.10. On the dorsum of the foot, almost of the PDQ were tendinous structure except one which consisted of muscle fibers (Figure 4.6B). Most of the PQ originated from the PB muscle belly and less frequently originated from the PB tendon. The PQ inserted on various sites including retrotrochlear eminence, peroneal tubercle, cuboid and dorsolateral surface of base of 5th metatarsal as described in Table 4.10 and Figure 4.7. The PQ was also found bilaterally in 2 (15.83%) cases (1 male and 1 female).



Figure 4. 6 Peroneus digitiquinti (PDQ) tendon (A) and muscle (B) on the dorsal surface of foot PB, peroneus brevis tendon; PL, peroneus longus tendon; EDL, extensor digitorum longus tendon

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn Universit

		n			
Muscle	Male	Female	Total	Origin	Insertion
	(n = 55)	(n = 54)	(n = 109)		
				- Peroneus brevis	- Retrotrochlear
				muscle belly (9)	eminence of calcaneus
Doropous	0	F	12	- Peroneus brevis	(9)
Quartus	0	C (4 E 00()	(11.020()	tendon (3)	- Base of 5 th metatarsal
Quartus	(7.34%)	(4.59%)	59%) (11.93%)	- Peroneus longus	(1)
			. 6600	tendon (1)	- Cuboid (1)
				12	- Peroneal tubercle (2)
		10	8	- Peroneus brevis	- Base of 5 th proximal
			1111	tendon (33)	phalanx (26)
				- Single tendon	- Base of 5 th middle
Peroneus			//R\$	(32)	phalanx (1)
	17	1	22	- Muscle fiber	- PDQ tendon merge with
digiti	1 ((15 (00())	7 16 60%) (14.68%)	33	(1)	extensor digitorum
quinti	(15.60%)		(30.28%)		longus and inserted at
			- AND AND A		base of 5 th distal
					phalanx (4)
				-	- Shaft of 5 th metatarsal
					(2)
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Peroneus longus	- Peroneal tubercle
				muscle (1)	between the inferior
					peroneal retinaculum
Linuaria					septum (1)
Unusual	1	1	2	Peroneus longus	- The tendon bifurcated,
accessory	(0.92%)	(0.92%)	(1.83%)	tendon and	one inserted at the
peroneal				peroneus brevis	talus and peroneal
				muscle (1)	tubercle, the other at
					the retrotrochlear
					eminence (1)

Table 4. 10 The prevalence of the accessory peroneal muscle, origin and insertion



Figure 4. 7 Location of Peroneus quartus (PQ) insertion; A) retrotrochlear eminence, B) 5th metatarsal C) cuboid, D) peroneal tubercle; PB, peroneus brevis tendon; PL, peroneus longus tendon; SPR, superior peroneal retinaculum

The unusual accessory peroneal muscles were observed in 2 specimens (1 male, 1 female). In one case, the unusual accessory peroneus muscle originated from the PL muscle and inserted on the peroneal tubercle (Figure 4.8). The other unusual accessory peroneal muscle had 2 heads of origin, one from the PL tendon and the other from the lower part of the PB muscle at the distal end of fibula. Both parts united and coursed over the PL tendon at the lateral malleolus before splitting into two tendons. Then, the tendon inserted on the retrotrochlear eminence, the other part inserted on the talus and peroneal tubercle (Figure 4.9). In addition, as aforementioned, there was the co-existed PQ which inserted at retrotrochlear eminence in this case.



Figure 4. 8 The unusual accessory peroneal muscle (*) A) arose from peroneus longus muscle (PL) B) inserted at peroneal tubercle; LM: lateral malleolus, PB: peroneus brevis muscle



Figure 4. 9 The unusual accessory peroneal muscle (*) which co-existed with peroneus quartus muscle (PQ); the origin of unusual accessory peroneal muscle (\checkmark) from PL and PB; PL, peroneus longus tendon; PB, peroneus brevis tendon; LM, lateral malleolus; IPR, inferior peroneal retinaculum

Superior peroneal tunnel and its content

After cutting the SPR at its origin, the content of the superior peroneal tunnel was exposed. The superior peroneal tunnel (SP tunnel) located posterior to lateral malleolus. This tunnel was covered by the SPR. The floor of the SP tunnel was the retromalleolar groove and posterior intermuscular septum of the leg. The contents of the SP tunnel generally composed of the PB and PL tendons (Fig. 4.10). The PL tendon lied superficial to the PB tendon, however, the muscle fiber of PB was found in the superior peroneal tunnel as well. The presence of the PB muscle fiber in the SP tunnel was called the low level-lying of peroneus brevis muscle. The low level-lying of peroneus brevis muscle was found in 86 (78.89%) cases.



Figure 4. 10 The SPR was cut at its origin to expose contents of the superior peroneal tunnel that composed of peroneus brevis and peroneus longus tendon; PL – peroneus longus tendon; PB – peroneus brevis tendon; LM – lateral malleolus; SPR – superior peroneal retinaculum; * - floor of the superior peroneal tunnel

Moreover, the evidence of PB tendon tear was found in 14 from 109 cases (12.84%) (Figure 4.11A – 4.11C). The location of the PB tear was found superior to lateral malleolus. This tear extended proximal to the entrance of inferior peroneal tunnel in most cases. Most of them were found in SPR type Ib (10 cases) (Table 4.12). Moreover, one male cadaver with symmetrical SPR type Ib had bilateral PB tendon tears. The prevalence of the PB tendon tear in type Ib was significantly higher than the others (p = 0.001).

The PB tendon tear could categorize to single (Fig. 4.11A & B) and multiple tear (Fig. 4.11C). In addition, there were 2 cases of PB tendon tear extended from the retromalleolar groove to the inferior peroneal tunnel (IP tunnel). In that cases, the PB tendon tear was found in the upper tunnel of the IP tunnel. However, there was no PL tendon tear in any cases. There was no statistically significant association between PB tendon tear to the low level-lying of the PB muscle belly as showed in table 4.12.



Figure 4. 11 The grade IV of peroneus brevis tendon tear (arrow); A. single tear of PB tendon; B and C. multiple tear of PB tendon; PL: peroneus longus tendon, PB: peroneus brevis tendon

SPR	Peroneus brevis	<i>p</i> -value	
	Presence	Absent	_
Type la	1 (7.14)	13 (92.86)	
Type Ib	10 (20.83)	38 (79.17)	p = 0.001
Type III	3 (6.67)	42 (93.33)	

Table 4. 11The prevalence of the PB tendon tear

Table 4. 12 The association between the peroneus brevis tendon tear with the presence of low level-lying of the peroneus brevis muscle

		Peroneus	brevis tendor)	
		tear		Total	Chi-square
		Present	Absent	_	
the low level-	Present	13	73	86	
lying of peroneus	Absent 🖌	1	22	23	p = 0.170
brevis		1 Streege			
	Q.		and a		

The additional contents of the superior peroneal tunnel

VA.

In this study, the additional contents in the superior peroneal tunnel were PQ and the unusual accessory peroneal muscle. In this study, the accessory peroneal muscle was found in 47 from 109 cases (44.04%). Most of the PQ (13 cases) travelled in the SP tunnel as the additional content (**Fig. 4.7**). Moreover, other 2 cases the unusual accessory peroneal muscles were coursed in the SP tunnel before inserted in their insertion site (**Fig. 4.8 – 4.9**). The characteristic, origin and insertion of this muscle were described in the accessory peroneal muscles.

The inferior peroneal tunnel and its contents

The space under the IPR was called the IP tunnel. This tunnel could be divided into 2 tunnels by the attachment of the IPR to the peroneal tubercle as the upper and lower tunnels. The contents of the IP tunnel generally composed of PB tendon in upper tunnel and PL tendon in lower tunnel (**Fig. 4.12A**).



Figure 4. 12 Interior of the IP tunnel after cutting IPR origin and insertion; **A.** PB in the upper tunnel and PL in the lower tunnel; **B.** The septum and peroneal tubercle (*) in the floor of the upper tunnel; **C.** The septum and peroneal tubercle (*) in the floor of the lower tunnel; ◆ - cutting edges of IPR; * - the attachment of the septum to the peroneal tubercle; PB - peroneus brevis tendon; PL - peroneus longus tendon; LM - lateral malleolus

However, the interior of the upper tunnel revealed the additional contents including 2 cases of the peroneus digiti quinti muscle (PDQ) (Fig. 4.13A) and another 2 cases of peroneus quartus muscle (PQ) (Fig. 4.13B - D). In this study, the total number of PDQ was found in 33 (30.28%) of cases. Most of the PDQ split from PB tendons after it exited out of the upper tunnel. Only 2 cases of them split from the PB tendon in the IP tunnel. The other additional content found in the upper tunnel was PQ. This muscle was the accessory peroneal muscle located in the distal third of fibula. The prevalence of the PQ in this study was found in 13 (11.93%) of cases. Most of the PQ inserted on the retrotrochlear eminence. Only two cases of PQ (one female and one male) were found in the upper tunnel and inserted on the peroneal tubercle. In the female specimen, the PQ originated from PB muscle. Its tendon coursed through the upper tunnel and inserted on the peroneal tubercle (Fig. 4.13B). In the male specimen, the slender tendon of the PQ split from the anterolateral part of the PL tendon (Fig. 4.13C) and passed along the posterior border of the lateral malleolus to insert on the IPR. In addition, a part of this tendon traveled into the upper tunnel and attached to the peroneal tubercle (Fig. 4.13D).

Chulalongkorn University



Figure 4. 13 Additional content in the upper tunnel of inferior peroneal tunnel; **A**.P DQ; **B**. The PB and PL were elevated to show the PQ originated from PB; **C**. Origin of PQ from PL; **D**. The PL was elevated from the lower tunnel to show the attachment of PQ tendon on the peroneal tubercle (**★**); **V** - cutting edge of the IPR; PB peroneus brevis tendon; PL – peroneus longus tendon; PDQ - peroneus digiti quinti muscle; PQ – peroneus quartus muscle; IER - inferior extensor retinaculum; IPR inferior peroneal retinaculum; LM, lateral malleolus

The additional content was also found in the lower tunnel as well. The unusual accessory peroneal muscle originated from the PL muscle and coursed along the anterior border of the PL tendon (**Fig. 4.14A**). At the lateral malleolus, it passed deep to the PL tendon and lodged in the lower tunnel to insert on the peroneal tubercle (Fig. 4.14B). The peroneal tubercle lied between the PB and PL tendon in all cases.



Figure 4. 14 Additional content in the lower IP tunnel; **A.** The unusual accessory peroneal muscle (arrow) originated from PL and coursed anterior to PL tendon; **B.** The tendon of unusual accessory peroneal tendon traveled deep to PL tendon and entered the lower tunnel to insert on peroneal tubercle; PL - peroneus longus tendon; PB – peroneus brevis tendon; **★** - peroneal tubercle; IPR - inferior peroneal retinaculum; LM – lateral malleolus; IER - inferior extensor retinaculum

The morphology of the retromalleolar groove contour, retrotrochlear eminence and peroneal tubercle

The retromalleolar groove located posterior to the lateral malleolus. This structure was the part of the floor of the superior peroneal tunnel. The retromalleolar groove contour could classify to concave, flat, convex and irregular contour. The prevalence of concave, flat, convex and irregular contour were found in 93 (85.32%), 10 (9.17%), 3 (2.75%) and 3 (2.75%) cases, respectively (**Table 4.13**).

The retrotrochlear eminence was the bony prominence of the lateral wall of the calcaneus which located posterior to the peroneal tubercle in all cases. This bony prominence was the insertion site of the PQ muscle and unusual accessory peroneal muscle. The prominence of the retrotrochlear eminence was found in 87 (79.82%) cases.

The peroneal tubercle was the bony prominence that located between the PB and PL tendons in all cases. This bony prominence was the septum of the inferior peroneal tunnel. The prominence of the peroneal tubercle was found in 51 (46.79%) cases.

All of the bony prominence including retromalleolar groove contour, the retrotrochlear eminence and the peroneal tubercle were asymptomatic.

The data analysis revealed that there was no statistically significant association of the presence of the accessory peroneal muscles (both PQ and PDQ) to neither the prominence of the peroneal tubercle nor the prominence of the retrotrochlear tubercle (Table 4.14 and 4.15). Moreover, there was no statistically significant association of the PB tendon tear to neither the prominence of peroneal tubercle nor the prominence of retrotrochlear tubercle as well (Table 4.16). In addition, there was no statistically significant association of the PB tendon tear to the contour of the retromalleolar groove (Table. 4.16).

There was no coexistence of PQ and PB tendon tear in any case. The PB tendon tear was found to co-exist with the presence of PDQ in 6 (42.86%) cases. However, there was no statistically significant association of the PB tendon tear to neither the present of the PQ nor the PDQ **(Table 4.17)**.

		Peroneus brevis tendon tear		Total	Chi-	
		Present	Absent	_	square	
the retromalleolar	Concave	13	80	93	p = 0.786	
	Flat	1	9	10		
	Convex	0	3	3		
groove contour	Irregular	0	3	3	-	
		000001	2			

Table 4. 13 The association between the peroneus brevis tendon tear with the retromalleolar groove contour

Table 4. 14 The association between the peroneus quartus (PQ) with prominence of peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence

			Peroneus q	uartus (PQ)	Tatal	Chi-
			Present	Absent	- 10181	square
Prominence	of	Present	12	75	87	
retrotrochlear		/	Deceedan			- p = 0.232
		Absent	10000000	21	22	la
eminence		0	- DIM V MAN	B		
Prominence	of	Present	7	44	51	p = 0.578
peroneal tubercle		Absent	6	52	58	— p = 0.578

Table 4. 15 The association between the peroneus digiti quinti (PDQ) with

prominence of peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence

			Peroneus dig	itiquinti (PDQ)	Total	Chi-
			Present	Absent	TOLAL	square
Prominence	of	Present	27	60	87	
retrotrochlear						- p = 0.732
eminence		Absent	6	16	22	
Prominence	of	Present	17	34	51	p = 0.515
peroneal tubercle		Absent	16	42	58	- µ = 0.515

			Peroneus bi	revis tendon		Chi-
			tear		Total	
			Present	Absent	_	square
Prominence	of	Present	13	74	87	
retrotrochlear						— p = 0.193
		Absent	1	21	22	
eminence						
Prominence	of	Present	7	44	51	p = 0.706
peroneal tubercle		Absent	Z	51	58	- μ = 0.790
		1010				

Table 4. 16 The association between the peroneus brevis tendon tear with prominence of peroneal tubercle and retrotrochlear eminence

Table 4. 17 The association between the peroneus brevis tendon tear with the presence of the peroneus quartus and peroneus digiti quinti

		Peroneus b	revis tendon		
		tear		Total	Chi-square
		Present	Absent	_	
Presence of the	Present	0	13	13	– p = 0.140
peroneus quartus	Absent	14	82	96	
Presence of the	Present	6	27	33	– p = 0.272
peroneus digiti quinti	Absent	<u>8</u>	68	76	

Chapter V

Discussion

The anatomy of superior peroneal retinaculum and related structures

The morphology of the SPR has been described in the standard text book and previous reports ^(12, 20, 21, 40). The origin of SPR observed in this study was from the fibrocartilagenous ridge of the lateral malleolus with an extension to the distal tip of the fibula which was in accordance with the previous studies ^(12, 20, 21, 40). The SPR had at least one insertion site either on the posterior intermuscular septum or lateral wall of the calcaneus. The insertion on the posterior intermuscular septum was in accordance with that described previously ⁽²¹⁾. Moreover, the MRI study also revealed that the horizontal band of the SPR attached to the superficial and deep aponeuroses of the posterior compartment of the lower portion of the leg ⁽⁴⁵⁾. The insertion on the lateral wall of the calcaneus was similar to the results of Davis et al., 1994, but the insertion of the SPR on the lateral border of the calcaneal tendon in that report was not found in this study. The SPR has been previously divided into 5 types base on its insertion pattern ⁽⁴⁰⁾. Different characteristic and insertion pattern was described in this study. Here, the SPR was classified into 3 types based on its characteristic and insertion pattern. Type Ia and Ib were quite similar to type I of Davis's classification but the prevalence of type I in this study was higher (58% vs 47%). The difference between these two subtypes was the site of splitting into proximal and distal bands noted in this study has not been described elsewhere. The course and attachment of type II and type III in this study was in the same direction as type II of Davis's classification. However, the prevalence of type II in this study was lesser (2% vs 13%) but the prevalence of type III was higher (41% vs 13%). The symmetry in type was also reported here. Type III and type Ib were more common.

The average length of SPR inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum was approximately 23 mm. However, the length of type III was shorter than the others. The length of distal band was quite equal in both type Ia and Ib. To the best of our knowledge, this is the first anatomical study of the length of SPR. The average width of origin in accordance with previous report ⁽⁴⁰⁾. The thickness of SPR reported in this study was lesser than previous study in MRI ⁽⁴⁶⁾. This might be resulted from the difference in the method and the site of measurement.

The SPR had an essential role to be the primary stabilizer of the peroneal tendons and resisted the subluxation/dislocation ^(4, 7). The insufficiency of the SPR could cause the attrition of the peroneal tendons and lead to tear. The peroneal tendon tear or attrition was reported as a consequence of acute mechanical or repetitive injury such as trauma, mechanical irritation or attrition within retromalleolar groove, subluxation of SPR, incompetent of SPR and ankle instability ^(4, 9, 27). There were several anatomic factors associated with peroneal tendon tear including the presence of the accessory peroneal muscles, the prominence of retrotrochlear eminence and the thinning or laxity of the SPR ^(4, 9, 24, 27).

In this study, the PB tendon tear was found in 14 cases and associated with SPR type Ib statistically significance. The morphometric data showed that the site of splitting of this type was in its middle part which was thinner than the rest. This would cause a decreasing in the strength of this retinaculum and resulted in SPR insufficiency.

The angle between the proximal and distal bands in this type was wider than the others. In addition, the width of the SPR type Ib was wider than the others. These characteristics might decrease the flexibility of this type by fixing this retinaculum at its origin more than others. These features might lead to increase the risk of peroneal tendon attrition within retromalleolar groove. Furthermore, bilateral PB tendon tear was found in one case of symmetrical SPR type Ib. Taken together; the presence of type Ib might have a potential to increase the risk of PB tendon tear. Moreover, only 13 from 87 cases with prominent retrotrochlear eminence were coexisted with PB tendon tear. Therefore, no statistically significance association was reported. Previous studies had reported that the presence of the PQ might have a potential to create the attrition or tear of peroneal tendon at the retromalleolar groove ^(1, 25, 31). However, all of the PB tendon tear cases in this study were not coexisted with the presence of PQ. Moreover, the presence of PDQ in this study was not significant associated with PB tendon tear. Previous studies claimed that the reattachment of the SPR to its anatomical position could prevent the recurrent symptom of the subluxation/ dislocation even the groove deepening techniques was not performed ⁽³⁾. Therefore, the knowledge of the width and coordinate of the midpoint of origin measured from the fibular tip will provide the precise area for the SPR reattachment on the lateral malleolus. Furthermore, the angle of the SPR and the coordinate of horizontal and vertical distance from midpoint of SPR insertion from the fibular tip reported here can be used to design the direction and also the precise area for SPR reattachment on the lateral wall of calcaneus. This data is also useful for the SPR reconstruction in case of calcaneus fracture with a complication of SPR injury, especially in Sander A type ^(47, 48). Moreover, the reconstruction of the SPR by using the autologous graft including gracilis tendon, tensor fascia latae and plantaris tendon had been reported ⁽⁴⁹⁻⁵¹⁾. The morphometric data of SPR including its length, width and thickness provided in this study will be beneficial for the design and harvesting of the graft.

The accessory peroneal muscles

The space under the SPR was called SP tunnel. The boundaries of this tunnel consisted of SPR as its roof, posterior intermuscular septum and retromallolar groove as its floor. The boundaries of SP tunnel was in accordance with previous literatures ^(12, 18, 39, 45). The contents of the SP tunnel generally composed of PB and PL tendons however, the low level-lying of the PB muscle was found. The prevalence of the low level-lying of the PB muscle was found in 80% of cases. This prevalence was higher than previous literature ⁽¹⁵⁾. The additional content was reported in the SP tunnel including PQ was found in this study in accordance with previous literatures ⁽²⁵⁻²⁷⁾. Interestingly, the unusual accessory peroneal muscle, additional contents has not been reported were found in this study.

The prevalence of the accessory peroneal muscles in this study was 44.04 %. These muscles were PDQ, PQ and unusual accessory peroneal muscles. The prevalence of PQ in this study was 11.93% and predominantly found in male which was in accordance with the previous studies (5 – 22 %) ^(12, 24, 26-28). The PQ muscle arose only from PB muscle belly and its tendon but not from the distal shaft of fibula or

posterior intermuscular septum as previously described ^(24, 26, 28). The PQ had a single tendon and inserted on various sites including retrotrochlear eminence, peroneal tubercle, base of 5th metatarsal and cuboid. However, Bilgili et al. (2014) reported a case of PQ with 2 separated tendons and inserted at different points. In that case, the PQ tendon was bifurcated and coursed above and beneath the PB tendon to insert at the retrotrochlear eminence and cuboid bone ⁽²⁶⁾. The PQ had been reported to be co-existed with the hypertrophy of the peroneal tubercle or retrotrochlear eminence ^(18, 25). In this study, only 7 from 51 cases with prominent peroneal tubercle and 12 from 87 cases with prominent retrotrochlear eminence of the retrotrochlear eminence or peroneal tubercle with the presence of PQ was not statistical significance. Moreover, the hypertrophy of the peroneal tubercle and prominent retrotrochlear eminence were also present in asymptomatic ankle without the presence of PQ in accordance with previous studies ^(27, 29).

Tubb et al. (2014) reported an unusual accessory muscle called peroneotalocalcaneus muscle. This muscle originated from the anterior intermuscular septum and PL muscle and inserted on the superior surface of the talus and calcaneus ⁽³⁷⁾. Moreover, Fabrizio (2015) reported an anomalous fibularis (peroneal) muscle. This muscle arose from the muscle belly of PL muscle in the proximal half and gave a long slender tendon, coursed posterior to lateral malleolus and inserted on the superficial aspect of inferior peroneal retinaculum ⁽³⁸⁾. In this study, the unusual accessory peroneal muscles were found in 2 cases (1.83%), male and female each. One of them arose from the PL and inserted at the peroneal tubercle between the inferior peroneal retinaculum septum. The other arose from the PL tendon and PB muscle and had two tendons with different insertions. One tendon inserted on the talus and peroneal tubercle while the other inserted on the retrotrochlear eminence. The co-existence of the PQ and unusual accessory peroneal muscle had been reported.

The prevalence of PDQ was 33% which was similar to the previous studies (30-50%) $^{(35, 36)}$. This muscle was commonly found bilaterally and predominantly in male $^{(24)}$. In contrast, the prevalence of bilateral PDQ in Indian population was only 5% $^{(36)}$. The PDQ muscle was reported to separate from PB tendon as a slender tendon $^{(35, 36)}$.

Interestingly, this study found one PDQ with muscle fibers. Most of the PDQ inserted on the different parts of the 5th toe including shaft of metatarsal and bases of proximal, middle and distal phalanges. Moreover, the PDQ tendon merged with that of the extensor digitorum longus and inserted at the base of distal phalanx in 3 cases. Demir et al. (2015) described the insertion pattern of PDQ as 2 different types; single tendon attached to the 5th metatarsal bone and two separated tendons attached to different parts of the 5th metatarsal bone⁽³⁵⁾. Moreover, dual insertion of PDQ on the 4th and 5th metatarsals were reported in 3% of PDQ cases ⁽³⁶⁾. In this study, all PDQ had a single tendon.

The anatomy of inferior peroneal retinaculum and related structures

The characteristics and detailed morphology of IPR were explored in this study. IPR extends from the inferior extensor retinaculum, courses posteriorly and inferiorly to attach the peroneal tubercle and lateral wall of the calcaneus. The origin and insertion of IPR described in this study were in accordance with previous literatures ^{(21, ³⁹⁾. However, the extension band of the IPR from the insertion on the lateral wall to the lateral process of the calcaneus had not been reported. This band had a clear border separated from the surrounding fascia and coursed in the same direction with the IPR. The prevalence of the extension band was found in 31.19% of cases. This extension band may play a role in stabilization of PL tendon in the lower tunnel. In this study, we found two cases of PB tendon tear in the upper tunnel but none of PL tears in the lower tunnel.}

The average length of IPR from its origin to the calcaneus was approximately 23 mm. similarly in both genders. The middle portion of the IPR was the widest part. Therefore, it seemed to have a spindle-like shape. Since the IPR over the upper tunnel was very thin, therefore, only the thickness of it over the lower tunnel was obtained with an average thickness of 0.48 mm. This might increase the strength of the lower tunnel and stabilized the PL tendon in this tunnel.

IP tunnel was divided into 2 tunnels: the upper and lower tunnels. Generally, the content of these tunnels were PB and PL tendons, respectively ⁽³⁹⁾. This literature revealed no other additional contents. However, the additional contents reported

here was PDQ, PQ in the upper tunnel and unusual accessory peroneal muscle in the lower tunnel. The PDQ origin was reported to be from PB tendon after it exited out of the upper tunnel of IPR ^(24, 35, 36) or in the upper tunnel⁽⁵²⁾. In this study, both PDQ arose from the PB tendon in the upper tunnel. PQ was previously reported to originate from the PB muscle or tendon, distal part of the fibula and PL ^(24, 25, 27, 34). In this study, one PQ arose from PB and the other arose from PL. The insertions of PQ in both cases were on the peroneal tubercle, similar to previous studies ^(28, 34). The unusual accessory peroneal muscle in the lower tunnel split from the PL tendon at the middle third of the fibula and inserted on the peroneal tubercle.

Injury of the IPR resulted in distal subluxation of the peroneal tendon was reported in the professional soccer players, which was treated by peroneal tubercle removal and relocation of the PL tendon together with suturing of the IPR. The mechanism of injury was dorsiflexion with internal rotation of the foot and iatrogenic injury after surgical repair of fractured os peroneum^(53, 54). The morphometric data found in this study can be beneficial in surgical repair of the injured IPR into its anatomical position to prevent residual instability or stenosis of the peroneal tendon. The additional contents in the IP tunnel should be looked for during surgery and removed if overcrowding in the tunnel was found.

Most of the PB and PL tendons were intact. Only 2 cases of PB tear were found in the upper tunnel. Moreover, there was no evidence of PL tendon tear. Furthermore, all of the IPR in this study were intact and no gross evidence of the IPR tear. Comparisons between genders and sides revealed that only the width at IPR origin in the left side of male and female specimens was significantly different. This finding would support the previous studies which revealed that the incidence of the PB tendon tear was more common than the PL tendon tear ^(1, 4). In this study, we reported two cases of PB tendon tear in the upper tunnel but none of PL tears in the lower tunnel.

Chapter VI

Conclusion

The characteristic and morphometric data of the SPR were described. SPR could be divided by the insertion pattern into type Ia, type Ib, type II and type III. SPR had at least one insertion band on the posterior intermuscular septum or lateral wall of calcaneus. The average coordinates (X, Y) of origin in all types were 7.26 ± 3.15 (0.87-15.15) and 10.45 ± 4.52 (1.69-26.23) mm. The average coordinates of SPR which inserted on the posterior intermuscular septum were 24.06 ± 4.94 and 13.35 ± 5.18 , and those inserted on the lateral wall of calcaneus were 21.45 ± 7.88 and 13.59 ± 6.73 mm. The morphometric data provide in this study may have beneficial for SPR surgical procedures in both reattachment and reconstruction. The type Ib had a trend to be associated with PB tendon tear.

The prevalence of PQ, PDQ and unusual accessory peroneal muscle in this study was in agreement with the previous reports. Co-existence of PQ and one unusual accessory peroneal muscle was revealed in one male specimen. There was no association between the PQ or PDQ and the prominence of retrotrochlear eminence or peroneal tubercle. Moreover, the PB tendon tear was not significant associated with the presence of accessory peroneal muscle, the prominence of retrotrochlear eminence eminence and peroneal tubercle.

The morphology and morphometric data of the IPR were described. The shape of the IPR was spindle-like with the wildest part in the middle. The angle of the IPR to the horizontal axis was approximately 38 degrees. IPR is thicker in the lower IP tunnel and the extension band was found in 31%. The additional contents were found in both IP tunnels: PDQ and PQ in the upper IP tunnel and the unusual accessory peroneal muscle in the lower tunnel. All these data are beneficial for surgical treatment of IPR injury.

The limitation of this study was the use of the formalin fixed cadaver which might cause the unusual position of the foot and ankle. Although the adjustment of the foot and ankle to the neutral position by Achilles tendon releasing and a supporting frame was performed, the embalmed cadaveric legs might yield different results from fresh or soft-embalmed cadaveric legs.



REFERENCES

1. Sobel M, Bohne WH, Levy ME. Longitudinal attrition of the peroneus brevis tendon in the fibular groove: an anatomic study. Foot Ankle. 1990;11:124-8.

2. Sobel M, DiCarlo EF, Bohne WH, Collins L. Longitudinal splitting of the peroneus brevis tendon: an anatomic and histologic study of cadaveric material. Foot Ankle. 1991;12:165-70.

3. Cho J, Kim JY, Song DG, Lee WC. Comparison of Outcome After Retinaculum Repair With and Without Fibular Groove Deepening for Recurrent Dislocation of the Peroneal Tendons. Foot Ankle Int. 2014;35:683-9.

4. Coughlin MJ, Saltzman C, Anderson RB. Part VI arthritis, postural disorders, and tendon disorders. Mann's surgery of the foot and ankle. 9th ed. Philadelphia: Elsevier; 2014. p. 1232-75.

5. Maffulli N, Ferran NA, Oliva F, Testa V. Recurrent subluxation of the peroneal tendons. Am J Sports Med. 2006;34:986-92.

6. Karlsson J, Wiger P. Longitudinal Split of the Peroneus Brevis Tendon and Lateral Ankle Instability: Treatment of Concomitant Lesions. J Athl Train. 2002;37:463-6.

7. Roth JA, Taylor WC, Whalen J. Peroneal tendon subluxation: the other lateral ankle injury. Br J Sports Med. 2010;44:1047-53.

8. van Dijk PA, Gianakos AL, Kerkhoffs GM, Kennedy JG. Return to sports and clinical outcomes in patients treated for peroneal tendon dislocation: a systematic review. Knee Surg Sports Traumatol Arthrosc. 2016;24:1155-64.

9. Dombek MF, Lamm BM, Saltrick K, Mendicino RW, Catanzariti AR. Peroneal tendon tears: a retrospective review. J Foot Ankle Surg. 2003;42:250-8.

10. Oliva F, Saxena A, Ferran NA, Maffulli N. Peroneal Tendinopathy. In: Saxena A, editor. Sports Medicine and Arthroscopic Surgery of the Foot and Ankle. Palo Alto: Springer Dordrecht Heidelberg New York London; 2013. p. 187-212.

 Lotito G, Pruvost J, Collado H, Coudreuse JM, Bensoussan L, Curvale G, et al.
Peroneus quartus and functional ankle instability. Ann Phys Rehabil Med. 2011;54:282-92. 12. Athavale SA, Swathi, Vangara SV. Anatomy of the superior peroneal tunnel. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 2011;93:564-71.

13. Galli MM, Protzman NM, Mandelker EM, Malhotra AD, Schwartz E, Brigido SA. An examination of anatomic variants and incidental peroneal tendon pathologic features: a comprehensive MRI review of asymptomatic lateral ankles. J Foot Ankle Surg. 2015;54:164-72.

14. Housley SN, Lewis JE, Thompson DL, Warren G. A Proximal Fibularis Brevis Muscle Is Associated with Longitudinal Split Tendons: A Cadaveric Study. J Foot Ankle Surg. 2017;56:34-6.

15. Mirmiran R, Squire C, Wassell D. Prevalence and Role of a Low-Lying Peroneus Brevis Muscle Belly in Patients With Peroneal Tendon Pathologic Features: A Potential Source of Tendon Subluxation. J Foot Ankle Surg. 2015;54:872-5.

Zhenbo Z, Jin W, Haifeng G, Huanting L, Feng C, Ming L. Sliding fibular graft
repair for the treatment of recurrent peroneal subluxation. Foot Ankle Int. 2014;35:496 503.

Saragas NP, Ferrao PN, Mayet Z, Eshraghi H. Peroneal tendon
dislocation/subluxation - Case series and review of the literature. Foot Ankle Surg.
2016;22(2):125-30.

18. Wang XT, Rosenberg ZS, Mechlin MB, Schweitzer ME. Normal variants and diseases of the peroneal tendons and superior peroneal retinaculum: MR imaging features. Radiographics. 2005;25:587-602.

19. Pace A, Dhar S. Technique tip: tubularizing flat tendons in foot and ankle surgery. Foot Ankle Int. 2008;29:342-3.

20. Moore KL, II AFD, Agur AMR. In: Taylor C, editor. Clinically oriented anatomy. 7th ed. Philadelphia: Lippincott Williams & Wilkins, a Wolters Kluwer business.; 2014. p. 591-610.

21. Standring S. section 9:pelvic girdle and lower limb. In: Tubbs RS, editor. Gray's Anatomy: the anatomical basis of clinical practice. 41 ed. London: Elsevier; 2014. p. 1400-17.

22. Davda K, Malhotra K, O'Donnell P, Singh D, Cullen N. Peroneal tendon disorders. EFORT Open Rev. 2017;2:281-92. 23. Neuman D. Kinesiology of the musculoskeletal system: foundations for rehabilitation. 2nd ed. St. Louis: MOSBY Elsevier; 2010.

24. Yammine K. The accessory peroneal (fibular) muscles: peroneus quartus and peroneus digiti quinti. A systematic review and meta-analysis. Surg Radiol Anat. 2015;37:617-27.

25. Sobel M, Levy ME, Bohne WH. Congenital variations of the peroneus quartus muscle: an anatomic study. Foot Ankle. 1990;11:81-9.

26. Bilgili MG, Kaynak G, Botanlioglu H, Basaran SH, Ercin E, Baca E, et al. Peroneus quartus: prevalance and clinical importance. Arch Orthop Trauma Surg. 2014;134:481-7.

27. Zammit J, Singh D. The peroneus quartus muscle. Anatomy and clinical relevance. J Bone Joint Surg Br. 2003;85:1134-7.

28. Athavale SA, Gupta V, Kotgirwar S, Singh V. The peroneus quartus muscle: clinical correlation with evolutionary importance. Anat Sci Int. 2012;87:106-10.

29. Saupe N, Mengiardi B, Pfirrmann CW, Vienne P, Seifert B, Zanetti M. Anatomic variants associated with peroneal tendon disorders: MR imaging findings in volunteers with asymptomatic ankles. Radiology. 2007;242:509-17.

30. Ugurlu M, Bozkurt M, Demirkale I, Comert A, Acar HI, Tekdemir I. Anatomy of the lateral complex of the ankle joint in relation to peroneal tendons, distal fibula and talus: a cadaveric study. Eklem Hastalik Cerrahisi. 2010;21:153-8.

31. Unlu MC, Bilgili M, Akgun I, Kaynak G, Ogut T, Uzun I. Abnormal proximal musculotendinous junction of the peroneus brevis muscle as a cause of peroneus brevis tendon tears: a cadaveric study. J Foot Ankle Surg. 2010;49:537-40.

32. Prakash, Narayanswamy C, Singh DK, Rajini T, Venkatiah J, Singh G. Anatomical variations of peroneal muscles: a cadaver study in an Indian population and a review of the literature. J Am Podiatr Med Assoc. 2011;101:505-8.

33. Bassett FH, 3rd, Speer KP. Longitudinal rupture of the peroneal tendons. Am J Sports Med. 1993;21:354-7.

34. Hur MS, Won HS, Chung IH. A new morphological classification for the fibularis quartus muscle. Surg Radiol Anat. 2015;37:27-32.

35. Demir BT, Gumusalan Y, Uzel M, Cevik HB. The variations of peroneus digiti quinti muscle and its contribution to the extension of the fifth toe. A cadaveric study. Saudi Med J. 2015;36:1285-9.

36. Jadhav SD, Gosavi SN, Zambare BR. Study of peroneus digiti minimi quinti in Indian population: a cadaveric study. Rev de Arg Anat Clin. 2013;5:67-72.

37. Tubbs RS, May WR, Shoja MM, Loukas M, Salter EG, Oakes WJ. Peroneotalocalcaneus muscle. Anat Sci Int. 2008;83:280-2.

38. Fabrizio PA. Unusual fibularis (peroneus) muscle. Surg Radiol Anat. 2015;37:997-9.

39. Sarrafian SK. Sarrafian's anatomy of the foot and ankle descriptive, topographic, functional. 3rd ed. Philadelphia: Lippincott William&Wilkins, a Wolters Kluwer bussiness; 2011. p. 131-2.

40. Davis WH, Sobel M, Deland J, Bohne WH, Patel MB. The superior peroneal retinaculum: an anatomic study. Foot Ankle Int. 1994;15:271-5.

41. Eckert WR, Davis EA, Jr. Acute rupture of the peroneal retinaculum. J Bone Joint Surg Am. 1976;58:670-2.

42. Oden RR. Tendon injuries about the ankle resulting from skiing. Clin Orthop Relat Res. 1987;216:63-9.

43. Kollias SL, Ferkel RD. Fibular grooving for recurrent peroneal tendon subluxation. Am J Sports Med. 1997;25:329-35.

44. Wayne W. D. Biostatistics: A foundation of analysis in the health sciences. 6th ed: John Wiley&Sons, Inc; 1995.

45. Cabral P, Paulino C, Takahashi R, Clopton P, Resnick D. Correlation of morphologic and pathologic features of the various tendon groups around the ankle: MR imaging investigation. Skeletal Radiol. 2013;42(10):1393-402.

46. Numkarunarunrote N, Malik A, Aguiar RO, Trudell DJ, Resnick D. Retinacula of the foot and ankle: MRI with anatomic correlation in cadavers. AJR Am J Roentgenol. 2007;188(4):W348-54.

47. Ketz JP, Maceroli M, Shields E, Sanders RW. Peroneal Tendon Instability in Intra-Articular Calcaneus Fractures: A Retrospective Comparative Study and a New Surgical Technique. J Orthop Trauma. 2016;30(3):e82-7. 48. Kwaadu KY, Fleming JJ, Florek D. Superior peroneal retinacular injuries in calcaneal fractures. J Foot Ankle Surg. 2015;54(3):458-63.

49. Miyamoto W, Takao M, Komatu F, Uchio Y. Reconstruction of the superior peroneal retinaculum using an autologous gracilis tendon graft for chronic dislocation of the peroneal tendons accompanied by lateral instability of the ankle: technical note. Knee Surg Sports Traumatol Arthrosc. 2007;15(4):461-4.

50. Schade VL, Harsha W, Rodman C, Roukis TS. Peroneal Tendon Reconstruction and Coverage for Treatment of Septic Peroneal Tenosynovitis: A Devastating Complication of Lateral Ankle Ligament Reconstruction With a Tendon Allograft. J Foot Ankle Surg. 2016;55(2):406-13.

51. Hansen BH. Reconstruction of the peroneal retinaculum using the plantaris tendon: a case report. Scand J Med Sci Sports. 1996;6(6):355-8.

52. Chaney ME, Dao TV, Brechtel BS, Belovich SJ, Siesel KJ, Fredieu JR. The fibularis digiti quinti tendon: A cadaveric study with anthropological and clinical considerations. Foot (Edinb). 2018;34:45-7.

53. Staresinic M, Bakota B, Japjec M, Culjak V, Zgaljardic I, Sebecic B. Isolated inferior peroneal retinculum tear in professional soccer players. Injury. 2013;44 Suppl 3:S67-70.

54. Sammarco VJ, Cuttica DJ, Sammarco GJ. Lasso stitch with peroneal retinaculoplasty for repair of fractured os peroneum: a report of two cases. Clin Orthop Relat Res. 2010;468:1012-7.

CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY
Appendix



1. The comparison each parameter between sides

					Normality testing		Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
Proximal	Lt.	7	22.34±5.21	16.51-32.83	0.200	0.222	- 0.716	_
band	Rt.	7	23.39±5.26	16.70-32.35	0.200	0.796	0.110	
	Total	14	22.86±5.06	16.51-32.83	0.191	0.101	-	-
Distal	Lt.	7	22.55±5.56	16.27-32.72	0.200	0.635	0.201	
band	Rt.	7	24.91±4.03	17.16-29.94	0.200	0.466	- 0.381	-
	Total	14	23.73±4.82	16.27-32.72	0.200	0.903	-	-
Type Ib					MC -			
Proximal	Lt.	25	23.01±3.45	18.45-31.15	0.061	0.039		0.400
band	Rt.	23	22.57±2.93	16.24-27.76	0.200	0.879	-	0.633
	Total	48	22.80±3.18	16.24-31.15	0.200	0.545	-	-
Distal	Lt.	25	28.79±4.71	22.38-40.71	0.003	0.020		0.073
band	Rt.	23	30.83±5.03	22.50-39.44	0.200	0.277		0.075
	Total	48	29.77±4.92	22.38-40.71	0.012	0.015	-	-
Type II			จุฬาลงก	เรณ์มหาวิ	วิทยาลัย			
Single band	Lt.	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	NAST	NA	-	-
Type III								
	Lt.	21	20.30 ± 3.09	15.68-26.60	0.200	0.540	0.420	
Single band	Rt.	24	21.27 ± 4.92	13.13-36.64	0.200	0.062	0.430	-
20110	Total	45	20.82 ± 4.15	13.13-36.64	0.200	0.011	-	-

					Normality	testing	Statistic testing	
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
	Lt.	7	16.57±4.03	10.33-21.11	0.200	0.550	0.070	
Proximal band	Rt.	7	19.59±2.42	14.98-21.74	0.200	0.930	0.276	
band	Total	14	17.58±3.36	10.33-21.74	0.200	0.322	-	-
	Lt.	7	NA	NA	NA	NA		_
Distal	Rt.	7	NA	NA	NA	NA		-
Danu	Total	14	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Type lb				///				
	Lt.	25	18.91±3.19	13.17-27.71	0.200	0.530	0.091	
Proximal	Rt.	23	20.23±3.45	15.37-28.98	0.200	0.211	- 0.001	-
Danu	Total	48	19.73±3.40	13.17-28.98	0.170	0.114	-	-
	Lt.	25	NA 🖉	NA	NA	NA		
Distal	Rt.	23	NA	NA	NA	NA		-
Dano	Total	48	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Type II			(1)					
Single band	Lt.	2	14.53±5.54	10.62-18.45	ทยาลัย _{NA}	NA	-	-
Type III						-		
	Lt.	21	16.98±4.37	8.05-25.34	0.200	0.999	0.454	
Single	Rt.	24	17.61±4.97	10.81-26.22	0.200	0.100	0.656	-
Danu	Total	45	17.31±4.65	8.05-26.22	0.200	0.389	-	-

1.2 The width of SPR origin

					Normality	Normality testing		Statistic testing	
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test	
Type la									
	Lt.	7	14.02±3.66	9.07-18.19	0.200	0.401	_	0.013	
Proximal	Rt.	7	18.55±3.81	10.61-22.51	0.029	0.065	-	0.015	
Dano	Total	14	16.29±4.29	9.07-22.51	0.046	0.0185	-	-	
	Lt.	7	10.99±3.89	5.20-15.34	0.200	0.419		0 220	
Distal	Rt.	7	13.40±3.04	10.46-19.85	0.034	0.034		0.558	
Dano	Total	14	12.20±3.58	5.20-19.85	0.200	0.401	-	-	
Type Ib				7///					
	Lt.	25	17.02±3.36	12.25-24.50	0.200	0.163	0.044		
Proximal	Rt.	23	17.09±3.30	11.38-24.26	0.200	0.890	- 0.844 -	-	
Danu	Total	48	17.23±3.35	11.38-24.50	0.200	0.204	-	-	
	Lt.	25	12.28±2.86	8.43-20.43	0.200	0.105	0.404		
Distal	Rt.	23	12.58±1.90	8.43-16.39	0.200	0.997	- 0.686	-	
band	Total	48	12.28±2.86	8.43-20.43	0.200	0.133	-	-	
Type II									
Single band	Lt.	2	13.10±4.14	10.17-16.02	ทยาลัย	NA	-	-	
Type III			TULALUN	URUNN U	MINEH211	I			
	Lt.	21	16.04±3.31	8.84-23.98	0.200	0.919	0.546		
Single	Rt.	24	15.27±4.85	7.84-23.36	0.200	0.207	- 0.546	-	
Danu	Total	45	15.63±4.18	7.84-23.98	0.200	0.541	-	-	

1.3 The width of SPR middle part

					Normality testing		Statistic testing	
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
	Lt.	7	10.93±3.84	6.31-17.42	0.200	0.812	0.010	
Proximal	Rt.	7	16.25±3.47	11.38-21.70	0.200	0.979	- 0.018	-
band	Total	14	13.59±4.47	6.31-21.70	0.200	0.953	-	-
	Lt.	7	8.96±3.15	4.59-14.17	0.200	0.916	0.040	
Distal	Rt.	7	12.24±2.08	8.76-14.49	0.200	0.588	- 0.040 -	-
Danu	Total	14	10.60±3.08	4.59-14.49	0.200	0.532	-	-
Type lb				///				
	Lt.	25	14.51±3.74	8.23-24.07	0.099	0.036	0.000	-
Proximal	Rt.	23	14.53±4.05	7.96-24.38	0.106	0.252	- 0.926	
Danu	Total	48	14.52±3.85	7.96-24.38	0.014	0.008		
	Lt.	25	10.22±4.25	5.65-29.94	0.009	0.000		0.554
Distal	Rt.	23	10.25±2.63	6.14-18.46	0.200	0.045		0.556
Danu	Total	48	10.23±3.53	5.65-26.94	0.014	0.000	-	-
Type II								
Single band	Lt.	2	10.83±7.00	5.88-15.78	ทยาลัย NA	NA	NA	NA
Type III			TULALUN		HIVENOIL			
	Lt.	21	14.86±2.76	10.54-21.12	0.200	0.877	0.572	
Single	Rt.	24	14.26±3.97	5.64-21.02	0.200	0.335	0.573	-
Danu	Total	45	14.55±3.42	5.64-21.12	0.200	0.516	-	-

1.4 The width of SPR insertion

				_	Normality	testing	Statistic testing	
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
	Lt.	7	0.52±0.22	0.19-0.75	0.072	0.086	0.017	
Proximal band	Rt.	7	0.37±0.19	0.15-0.68	0.200	0.789	0.217	-
band	Total	14	0.45±0.21	0.15-0.75	0.184	0.139	-	-
	Lt.	7	0.54±0.23	0.27-0.82	0.200	0.363	0.201	
Distal	Rt.	7	0.43±0.16	0.24-0.64	0.200	0.387	- 0.291	-
Danu	Total	14	0.49±0.20	0.24-0.82	0.200	0.236	-	-
Type Ib				///				
	Lt.	25	0.46±0.18	0.17-0.86	0.200	0.324	0.054	
Proximal	Rt.	23	0.46±0.22	0.20-0.98	0.200	0.050	0.954	-
Danu	Total	48	0.46±0.20	0.17-0.98	0.200	0.023	-	-
	Lt.	25	0.29±0.15	0.08-0.63	0.055	0.150	0.400	
Distal	Rt.	23	0.37±0.19	0.11-0.78	0.200	0.435	0.180	-
Danu	Total	48	0.33±0.17	0.08-0.78	0.056	0.036	-	-
Type II								
Single band	Lt.	2	0.73±0.25	0.55-0.91	ทยาลัย _{NA} NIVERSIT	NA	-	-
Type III								
	Lt.	21	0.49 ± 0.22	0.14-0.93	0.200	0.504		0 707
Single band	Rt.	24	0.46 ± 0.17	0.22-0.76	0.018	0.032	-	0.101
	Total	45	0.47 ± 0.20	0.14-0.93	0.042	0.079	-	-

		Normality testing				testing	Statistic testing		
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test	
Type la									
	Lt.	7	13.95±8.31	4.67-26.00	0.200	0.448	0.054		
Proximal	Rt.	7	10.48±4.55	3.33-14.67	0.200	0.185	0.351	-	
Danu	Total	14	12.21±6.69	3.33-26.00	0.200	0.230	-	-	
	Lt.	7	34.57±18.47	6.67-59.33	0.200	0.881	0.320		
Distal	Rt.	7	24.95±17.13	2.33-48.33	0.200	0.746	0.352	-	
Danu	Total	14	29.76±17.83	2.33-59.33	0.200	0.547	-	-	
Type Ib				///					
	Lt.	25	10.32±5.78	0.00-19.00	0.120	0.176	0.405		
Proximal	Rt.	23	8.13±3.58	3.67-19.33	0.200	0.016	- 0.125	-	
Danu	Total	48	9.27±4.92	0.00-19.33	0.200	0.580	-	-	
	Lt.	25	43.72±15.36	10.67-73.33	0.114	0.295	0.010		
Distal	Rt.	23	44.33±21.18	3.67-83.33	0.200	0.450	0.910	-	
Danu	Total	48	44.02±18.23	3.67-83.33	0.180	0.392	-	-	
Type II									
Single band	Lt.	2	18.69±4.68	15.38-22.00	ิทยาลัย NIVERSIT	-	-	-	
Type III									
	Lt.	21	10.27±5.40	0.00-18.33	0.200	0.349	0.600		
Single band	Rt.	24	9.32±6.76	0.00-23.00	0.200	0.391	0.009	-	
	Total	45	9.76±6.11	0.00-23.00	0.200	0.254	-	-	

					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
	Lt.	7	8.63±3.43	5.41-13.69	0.200	0.148	0.940	
Proximal	Rt.	7	9.02±4.00	2.62-15.15	0.200	0.980	0.049	-
band	Total	14	8.82±3.59	2.62-15.15	0.200	0.941	-	-
	Lt.	7	NA	NA	NA	NA	_	
Distal	Rt.	7	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
band	Total	14	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Type Ib				///				
	Lt.	25	6.46±3.16	1.76-11.75	0.008	0.048		0 740
Proximal	Rt.	23	6.74±2.56	2.36-11.64	0.084	0.387	-	0.149
Dariu	Total	48	6.59±2.86	1.76-11.75	0.002	0.019	-	-
	Lt.	25	NA	NA	NA	NA		
Distal	Rt.	23	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Dariu	Total	48	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Type II								
Single band	Lt.	2	7.31±1.48	6.27-8.36	ทยาลัย	NA	NA	NA
Type III			HULALUN	GRUKN U	NIVERSI			
	Lt.	21	7.75±3.09	2.73-14.65	0.200	0.367	0.840	
Single band	Rt.	24	7.22±3.39	0.87-13.74	0.200	0.394	0.049	
20110	Total	45	7.47±3.22	0.87-14.65	0.200	0.398	-	-

1.7 The horizontal distance from midpoint of SPR origin to the fibular tip

			Normality	testing	Statistic testing			
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
	Lt.	7	12.32±5.36	4.55-18.82	0.200	0.551		0.050
Proximal band	Rt.	7	20.04±8.13	2.47-26.23	0.010	0.004	-	0.058
barra	Total	14	16.18±7.73	2.47-26.23	0.200	0.240	-	-
	Lt.	7	NA	NA	NA	NA	_	
Distal	Rt.	7	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Danu	Total	14	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Type Ib								
	Lt.	25	8.27±2.56	3.85-14.33	0.200	0.576		
Proximal	Rt.	23	10.70±2.77	4.21-15.98	0.200	0.939	0.003	-
Danu	Total	48	9.43±2.91	3.85-15.98	0.200	0.681	-	-
	Lt.	25	NA	NA	NA	NA		
Distal	Rt.	23	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Danu	Total	48	NA	NA	NA	NA	-	-
Type II								
Single band	Lt.	2	9.13±5.13	5.51-12.76	ทยาลัย _{NA} NIVERSITY	NA	NA	NA
Type III								
c: I	Lt.	21	9.78±3.57	1.69-17.33	0.200	0.663	0.988	_
Single band	Rt.	24	9.79±3.02	4.62-17.28	0.200	0.682	0.700	-
-	Total	45	9.79±3.25	1.69-17.33	0.200	0.446	-	-

1.8 The vertical distance from midpoint of SPR origin to the fibular tip

					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
	Lt.	7	26.09±5.50	20.18-32.64	0.200	0.119	0.070	
Proximal band	Rt.	7	25.62±5.87	15.02-32.52	0.200	0.543	0.879	-
barra	Total	14	25.85±5.47	15.02-32.64	0.200	0.315		
	Lt.	7	22.94±8.00	14.90-35.14	0.200	0.322	0.000	
Distal	Rt.	7	23.42±7.64	11.58-35.13	0.200	0.946	- 0.909	-
Danu	Total	14	23.18±7.52	11.58-35.14	0.200	0.636		
Type lb				///				
	Lt.	25	23.27±5.80	10.46-35.67	0.200	0.514		
Proximal	Rt.	23	24.10±3.96	16.57-32.37	0.200	0.553	0.568	-
Danu	Total	48	23.67±4.97	10.46-35.67	0.200	0.428		
	Lt.	25	20.94±8.39	8.54-36.79	0.177	0.137		0.400
Distal	Rt.	23	20.95±7.70	11.17-38.66	0.200	0.037	-	0.439
Danu	Total	48	20.94±7.98	8.54-38.66	0.037	0.011		
Type II								
Single band	Lt.	² C	26.22±7.53	20.90-31.55	ทยาลัย _{NA} NIVERSIT	NA	NA	NA
Type III								
	Lt.	21	21.90±3.83	13.85-29.14	0.200	0.616		0.070
Single	Rt.	24	25.51±4.81	17.43-36.49	0.049	0.236	-	0.879
Jana	Total	45	23.82±4.70	13.85-36.49	0.010	0.240		

1.9 The horizontal distance from midpoint of SPR insertion to the fibular tip

					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
	Lt.	7	14.31±2.87	10.75-19.45	0.200	0.684	0.450	
Proximal band	Rt.	7	19.19±7.94	4.12-25.76	0.193	0.095	0.152	-
bana	Total	14	16.75±6.27	4.12-25.76	0.200	0.423		
	Lt.	7	14.48±4.64	7.20-22.38	0.200	0.752	0.166	
Distal	Rt.	7	10.11±6.32	1.53-20.03	0.200	0.540	- 0.100	-
Danu	Total	14	12.30±5.79	1.53-22.38	0.200	0.704		
Type lb				///				
	Lt.	25	12.54±4.39	4.24-21.44	0.200	0.693	0.125	
Proximal	Rt.	23	14.68±5.07	5.32-22.64	0.200	0.597		-
band	Total	48	13.56±4.80	4.24-22.64	0.200	0.379		
	Lt.	25	14.19±6.94	0.00-27.69	0.200	0.685	0.004	
Distal	Rt.	23	13.73±7.19	0.00-31.79	0.200	0.824	0.824	-
Danu	Total	48	13.97±6.99	0.00-31.79	0.200	0.946		
Type II			-001					
Single band	Lt.	2	4.48±2.48	2.73-6.24	ทยาลัย _{NA} NIVERSIT	NA	NA	NA
Type III								
_	Lt.	21	12.27±5.37	1.06-20.34	0.110	0.133	0 700	
Single band	Rt.	24	12.64±4.00	3.12-18.37	0.200	0.126	0.790	-
Gana	Total	45	12.47±4.64	1.06-20.34	0.200	0.081		

1.10 The vertical distance from midpoint of SPR insertion to fibular tip

1.11 The length of IPR

			-		Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov-	Kolmokorov- Shapiro- Unpaired Smirnov Wilk (Sig.) t-test 0.074 0.006	Unpaired	Mann- Whitney
					Smirnov		t-test	U test
	Lt.	54	23.54 ± 3.41	18.20-33.68	0.074	0.006	0.725	_
Length	Rt.	55	23.29 ± 3.70	17.05-33.08	0.200	0.439	0.125	-
	Total	109	23.42 ± 3.54	17.05-33.68	0.200	0.030	-	-

1.12 The width of IPR origin (Wo)

			. Lorona		Normality	testing Stati		testing
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
	Lt.	54	13.41 ± 2.86	8.22 - 20.92	0.200	0.171	0.625	
Wo	Rt.	55	13.17 ± 2.25	5.83 - 18.74	0.200	0.115	0.055	-
	Total	109	13.29 ± 2.56	5.83- 20.92	0.076	0.115	-	-

1.13 The width of IPR middle part (Wm)

			จุฬาลงก	รณ์มหาวิ	Normality	testing	Statistic testing	
	side	n C	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
	Lt.	54	14.68 ± 2.31	9.35-21.34	0.029	0.156	0.424	
Wm	Rt.	55	14.32 ± 2.44	6.86-19.63	0.200	0.711	0.434	-
	Total	109	14.50 ± 2.37	6.68-21.34	0.200	0.267	-	-

					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
	Lt.	54	10.38 ± 2.74	5.17-19.17	0.200	0.299	0.070	
Wi	Rt.	55	9.82 ± 2.53	4.59-14.94	0.200	0.789	0.278	-
	Total	109	10.10 ± 2.63	4.59-19.17	0.155	0.712	-	-
1.15	The th	icknes	ss of IPR					
			1////		Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Statistic Unpaired t-test	testing Mann- Whitney U test
	side Lt.	n 54	Mean±SD 0.47 ± 0.16	Range 0.20-0.82	Kolmokorov - Smirnov 0.200	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Statistic Unpaired t-test	testing Mann- Whitney U test
Thicknes	side Lt. Rt.	n 54 55	Mean±SD 0.47 ± 0.16 0.49 ± 0.15	Range 0.20-0.82 0.21-0.87	Kolmokorov - Smirnov 0.200 0.200	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.) 0.184 0.586	Statistic Unpaired t-test 0.747	testing Mann- Whitney U test
Thicknes	side Lt. Rt. Total	n 54 55 109	Mean±SD 0.47 ± 0.16 0.49 ± 0.15 0.48 ± 0.16	Range 0.20-0.82 0.21-0.87 0.20-0.87	Kolmokorov - Smirnov 0.200 0.200 0.200	testing Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.) 0.184 0.586 0.097	Statistic Unpaired t-test 0.747	testing Mann- Whitney U test -

1.14 The width of IPR insertion (Wi)

1.16 The angle of IPR to horizontal axis

		C	HULALON	gkorn U	Normality	testing	Statistic testing	
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
	Lt.	54	38.99 ± 7.28	23.33-54.00	0.200	0.488		0 565
Angle	Rt.	55	38.05 ± 6.89	11.67-48.67	0.049	0.003	-	0.505
	Total	109	38.51 ± 7.07	11.67-54.00	0.024	0.020	-	-

2. Comparison each parameter between genders

	2.1	The	length	of	SPR
--	-----	-----	--------	----	-----

					Normalit	y testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokoro v- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaire d t-test	Mann- Whitne y U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	28.22±6.01	19.86-32.83	-	0.266	0.094	_
l band	F	10	20.72±2.66	16.51-24.11	0.200	0.368	0.084	-
Distal	М	4	23.42±5.22	17.16-29.94	-	0.680	0.800	
band	F	10	23.86±4.94	16.27-32.72	0.200	0.800	- 0.890	-
Type Ib			- Internation					
Proxima	М	21	24.02±3.50	18.45-31.15	0.200	0.563	0.010	
l band	F	27	21.85±2.60	16.24-26.29	0.200	0.766	- 0.018	-
Distal	М	21	30.98±5.19	23.44-40.71	0.200	0.094	0.124	
band	F	27	28.83±4.57	22.38-38.71	0.200	0.093	- 0.134	-
Type II			1.58	Magada				
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89		-	-	-
Type III			23		100			
Single	М	30	21.13±3.53	14.68-27.61	0.200	0.384		0 1 2 3
band	F	15	20.20±5.27	13.13-36.64	0.003	0.002		0.125
		-						

GHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

					Normality t	esting	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapir o- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	19.14±2.48	16.55-21.74	-	0.460		0 304
l band	F	10	16.96±3.57	10.33-21.11	0.200	0.487	-	0.504
Distal	М	4	NA	NA	-	-		_
band	F	10	NA	NA	-	-	-	
Type Ib					2			
Proxima	М	21	20.57±4.03	13.53-28.98	0.200	0.588	0 132	_
l band	F	27	19.07±2.71	13.17-25.87	0.200	0.815	0.152	
Distal	М	21	NA	NA		-		_
band	F	27	NA	NA		-		
Type II								
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	-	-	-	-
Type III			A					
Single	М	30	17.69±4.95	8.05-26.22	0.200	0.511	0.450	_
band	F	15	16.56±4.06	10.81-25.34	0.200	0.752	0.450	

2.2 The width of SPR origin

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย

					Normality	testing	Statistic testing	
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	19.53±1.27	18.02-21.13	-	0.800		0.076
l band	F	10	14.99±4.42	9.07-22.51	0.200	0.463		0.076
Distal	М	4	13.66±4.26	10.40-19.85	-	0.190		0.045
band	F	10	11.61±3.34	5.20-15.34	0.029	0.079		0.945
Type Ib			0		22			
Proxima	М	21	18.16±3.66	11.38-24.50	0.200	0.801	0.070	
l band	F	27	16.22±2.78	12.45-24.26	0.200	0.084	- 0.062	-
Distal	М	21	12.57±1.59	9.17-15.38	0.200	0.914	0.754	
band	F	27	12.33±2.90	8.43-20.43	0.200	0.145	- 0.751	-
Type II					Ø/// Ø			
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89		-	-	-
Type III			A		E A			
Single	М	30	15.94±3.99	7.90-23.98	0.200	0.938	0.024	
band	F	15	15.55±4.30	8.49-23.36	0.156	0.525	- 0.934	-

2.3 The width of SPR middle part

จุหาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย

					Normali	ty testing	Statisti	c testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmoko rov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	13.87±4.34	7.82-17.28	-	0.302		0.045
l band	F	10	13.48±4.75	6.31-21.70	0.200	0.951	-	0.945
Distal	М	4	10.99±2.76	7.59-14.33	-	0.841		0 722
band	F	10	10.44±3.33	4.59-14.49	0.200	0.551		0.755
Type Ib					2			
Proxima	М	21	15.98±4.78	7.96-24.38	0.033	0.325		0 224
l band	F	27	13.85±3.09	8.23-22.90	0.200	0.300		0.224
Distal	М	21	10.25±2.51	5.65-12.88	0.013	0.005		0 127
band	F	27	10.23±4.42	6.37-26.94	0.000	0.000		0.157
Type II					1116			
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	-	-	-	-
Type III			A					
Single	М	30	14.84±3.11	8.55-21.12	0.200	0.935	0.427	
band	F	15	13.98±4.00	5.64-18.21	0.082	0.027	- 0.437	-
					~			

2.4 The width of SPR insertion

จุหาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย

					Normali	ty testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmoko rov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	0.55±0.11	0.42-0.68	-	0.780		0 374
l band	F	10	0.40±0.23	0.15-0.75	0.200	0.068	-	0.574
Distal	М	4	0.53±0.11	0.38-0.64	-	0.595		0 539
band	F	10	0.47±0.23	0.24-0.82	0.146	0.077		0.539
Type Ib			ll o		7			
Proxima	М	21	0.49±0.26	0.17-0.98	0.003	0.042		0.655
l band	F	27	0.42±0.17	0.19-0.80	0.200	0.310	-	0.055
Distal	Μ	21	0.33±0.17	0.13-0.63	0.133	0.129		0 972
band	F	27	0.33±0.18	0.08-0.78	0.039	0.153	-	0.712
Type II					111 00			
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	-	-	-	-
Type III			A C					
Single	М	30	0.49±0.19	0.22-0.87	0.010	0.043		0.457
band	F	15	0.45±0.22	0.14-0.93	0.200	0.602		0701

2.5 The thickness of SPR

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaire d t-test	Mann- Whitne y U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	11.00±5.51	3.33-15.33	-	0.303		0.945
l band	F	10	12.70±7.32	4.67-26.00	0.200	0.172	-	0.945
Distal	М	4	21.95±13.24	6.33-38.67	-	0.822		0.240
band	F	10	32.90±19.04	2.33-59.33	0.200	0.584	-	0.240
Type Ib			ll a		3			
Proxima	М	21	7.56±4.39	0.00-13.33	0.200	0.536	0.041	
l band	F	27	9.29±4.93	2.00-19.33	0.200	0.555	0.241	-
Distal	М	21	46.64±15.43	25.67-69.67	0.159	0.113	0.004	
band	F	27	47.63±20.96	3.67-83.33	0.200	0.982	0.894	-
Type II								
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	-	-	-	-
Type III			A					
Single	М	30	10.77±5.26	2.33-20.00	0.200	0.278	0 2 2 0	
band	F	15	8.47±7.18	0.00-23.00	0.200	0.201	0.520	-

CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

					Normality	testing	Statistic	c testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaire d t-test	Mann- Whitne y U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	9.16±1.54	7.89-11.11	-	0.323		0 733
l band	F	10	8.69±4.21	2.62-15.15	0.188	0.450	-	0.155
Distal	М	4	NA	NA	-	-		_
band	F	10	NA	NA	-	-	-	
Type Ib			ll c		1			
Proxima	М	21	6.74±2.80	3.10-11.75	0.015	0.083		0 787
l band	F	27	6.49±2.96	1.76-11.64	0.164	0.097	-	0.101
Distal	Μ	21	NA	NA		-		
band	F	27	NA	NA		-	-	
Type II					11 63			
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	-	-	-	-
Type III			A					
Single	М	30	7.98±3.10	0.87-14.65	0.127	0.219	0.151	_
band	F	15	6.50±3.34	1.10-12.68	0.200	0.626	0.131	-

2.7 The horizontal distance from midpoint of SPR origin to the fibular tip

					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaire d t-test	Mann- Whitne y U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	19.85±6.54	11.48-26.23	-	0.740		0.304
l band	F	10	14.71±7.98	2.47-23.83	0.200	0.236	-	0.504
Distal	М	4	NA	NA	-	-		
band	F	10	NA	NA	-	-	-	
Type lb			le contraction de la contracti		1			
Proxima	М	21	8.92±3.10	4.21-14.33	0.097	0.081	0.280	_
l band	F	27	9.84±2.73	3.85-15.98	0.200	0.878	0.200	
Distal	М	21	NA	NA		-		_
band	F	27	NA	NA		-	-	
Type II					⁶ 3			
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	-	-	-	-
Type III								
Single	М	30	9.79±3.44	1.69-17.28	0.200	0.970		0.824
band	F	15	9.77±2.98	6.48-17.33	0.200	0.043	-	0.024

2.8 The vertical distance from midpoint of SPR origin to the fibular tip

					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaire d t-test	Mann- Whitne y U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	29.19±4.58	22.79-32.52	-	0.196		0.240
l band	F	10	24.52±5.41	15.02-32.64	0.200	0.873	-	0.240
Distal	М	4	24.37±4.14	19.24-27.92	-	0.368		0.635
band	F	10	22.70±8.66	11.58-35.14	0.200	0.254	-	0.055
Type Ib					3			
Proxima	М	21	24.80±6.15	10.46-35.67	0.200	0.673	0 166	_
l band	F	27	22.79±3.69	14.95-32.37	0.189	0.446	0.100	-
Distal	М	21	21.48±7.40	8.54-36.79	0.200	0.658	0.686	-
band	F	27	20.53±8.52	11.17-38.66	0.116	0.004	0.000	
Type II				A COLOR				
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	-	-	-	-
Type III			A					
Single	М	30	24.23±4.38	15.97-35.65	0.114	0.554	0 223	_
band	F	15	22.61±5.11	13.85-36.49	0.085	0.106	0.225	_

2.9 The horizontal distance from midpoint of SPR insertion to the fibular tip

CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
Туре	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov - Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaire d t-test	Mann- Whitne y U test
Type la								
Proxima	М	4	19.85±6.98	11.80-25.76	-	0.228		0.240
l band	F	10	15.51±5.87	4.12-24.42	0.200	0.715	-	0.240
Distal	М	4	11.21±8.56	1.53-22.38	-	0.704		0 454
band	F	10	12.73±4.82	2.81-20.03	0.050	0.363	-	0.434
Type Ib					1			
Proxima	М	21	12.34±5.70	4.24-22.64	0.145	0.142	0 1 1 0	_
l band	F	27	14.52±3.80	8.97-22.58	0.200	0.475	0.119	
Distal	М	21	15.76±7.54	3.98-31.79	0.200	0.607	0.117	_
band	F	27	12.57±6.32	0.00-22.12	0.200	0.211	0.117	
Type II					B			
Single band	F	2	26.39±3.54	23.89-28.89	-	-	-	-
Type III								
Single	М	30	12.14±5.01	1.06-20.34	0.200	0.212	0.816	_
band	F	15	12.70±3.81	3.50-18.84	0.200	0.558	0.010	

2.10 The vertical distance from midpoint of SPR insertion to fibular tip

2.11 The length of IPR

					Normality testing		Statistic testing	
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov-	Shapiro-	Unpaired	Mann-
				5	Smirnov	Wilk	t_tost	Whitney
					51111101	(Sig.)	t test	U test
Longth	М	54	23.19±3.61	17.57-33.68	0.200	0.035	0.518	_
Length	F	55	23.63±3.49	17.05-33.08	0.200	0.500	- 0.310	-

2.12 The width of IPR origin (Wo)

				111/1	9			
					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
	side	n	Mean+SD	Bange	Kolmokorov	Shapiro	Uppaired	Mann-
	5100		Wiedin <u>+</u> 3D	Hanse	Consistence (ttast	Whitney
					Smirnov	VVICK (SIG.)	l-lesi	U test
W/o	М	54	12.70±2.70	5.83-20.68	0.200	0.050	0.017	_
VVO	F	55	13.87±2.30	9.47-20.92	0.200	0.358	- 0.017	-

2.13 The width of IPR middle part (Wm)

					Normality	testing	Statistic testing	
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
14/	М	54	14.04 ± 2.21	9.35-18.53	0.200	0.615	0.604	
Wm	F	55	14.58 ± 2.53	6.86-21.34	0.971	0.198	- 0.694	-

2.14 The width of IPR insertion (Wi)

					Normality testing		Statistic testing	
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
14/3	М	54	10.68 ± 2.66	5.17-19.17	0.200	0.342	0.022	
Wi	F	55	9.52 ± 2.50	4.59-14.54	0.200	0.385	0.022	-

				Normality testing		Statistic testing		
	side	n	Mean±SD	Range	Kolmokorov- Smirnov	Shapiro- Wilk (Sig.)	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
	Μ	54	0.46 ± 0.16	0.20-0.87	0.054	0.041		0 1 2 1
Thickness	F	55	0.49 ± 0.15	0.21-0.82	0.979	0.471		0.121

2.16 The angle of IPR to horizontal axis

					1			
					Normality	testing	Statistic	testing
	sida	n	Mean+SD	Range	Kalmakaray	Chamira	Unnaired	Mann-
	SILC		Medit_SD	nange	Controlour		ttest	Whitney
					Smirnov	WILK (SIG.)	l-lest	U test
A -	М	54	36.99 ± 7.25	11.67-36.66	0.018	0.005		0.063
Angle	F	55	38.22 ± 6.61	26.00-54.00	0.049	0.657		0.065

3. The comparison of SPR in each type

3.1	The length of	SPR

				-101	Statistic testing						
					One-way ANOVA test	Post HOC test (LSD)	Kruskal- Wallis H	Mann- Whitney U test	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test	
The comparison	between Single band	d on	which inserted on nostarior intarmuscular	Type la and type lb	0.035	0.955		-	-	-	
		h inserte		Type Ia and type III		0.088	-	-	-	-	
		whic		Type Ib and type III		0.016		-	-	-	
The	comparison	between	dictal hand	Type Ia and Ib	-	-	-	-	0.000	-	

3.2 The width of SPR origin

			Statistic testing						
	Туре	One-way ANOVA test	Post HOC test (LSD)	Kruskal- Wallis H	Mann- Whitney U test	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test		
son e band d on uscular	Type Ia and type Ib		-		0.788	-	-		
e compari een Single ch inserte	Type Ia and type III	-	-	0.289	0.510	-	-		
The betwe whic	Type Ib and type III	Maria	11/20		0.112	-	-		
The comparison between dietal hand	Type Ia and Ib				-	-	-		

3.3 The width of SPR middle part

				~		Statistic testing					
				Туре	One-way ANOVA test (LSD)	Kruskal- Wallis H	Mann- Whitney U test	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test		
The comparison	band	d on	ııscular	Type Ia and type Ib		-	0.788	-	-		
	en Single	h inserte	nostarior interm	Type Ia and type III	ลงกรณ์มหาวิท	0.289	0.510	-	-		
	betwe	whio		Type Ib and type III	LONGKORNUN	IVERSIT	0.112	-	-		
The	comparison	between	distal hand	Type Ia and Ib		-	-	0.783	-		

Statistic testing Kruskal-Mann-Mann-One-way Туре Post HOC Unpaired Whitney Wallis H Whitney ANOVA test (LSD) t-test U test U test test Type Ia and nosterior intermuscular between Single band 0.418 _ _ which inserted on The comparison type lb Type Ia and 0.685 0.411 type III Type Ib and 0.977 _ _ type III comparison distal hand between The Type Ia and Ib 0.304 3.5 The thickness of SPR Statistic testing One-way Kruskal-Mann-Mann-Туре Post HOC Unpaired ANOVA Wallis H Whitney Whitney test (LSD) t-test U test U test test Type la and nosterior intermuscular between Single band 0.813 _ _ which inserted on The comparison type lb Type Ia and 0.872 0.631 _ _ _ type III Type Ib and 0.717 type III comparison histal hand between The Type Ia and Ib 0.011

3.4 The width of SPR insertion

3.6 The angle of SPR

		Statistic testing					
	Туре	One-way ANOVA test	Post HOC test (LSD)	Kruskal- Wallis H	Mann- Whitney U test	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
son : band d on c.ular	Type Ia and type Ib		0.091		-	-	-
: compari en Single ch inserte	Type Ia and type III	0.236	0.162	-	-	-	-
The betwe whic nosteria	Type Ib and type III	Militian	0.678		-	-	-
The comparison between dictal hand	Type Ia and Ib				-	0.016	-
	1	////6					

3.7 The horizontal distance from midpoint of SPR origin to the fibular tip

	~	Statistic testing					
	Туре	One-way ANOVA test (LSD)	Mann- Whitney U test	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test		
son e band d on uscular	Type Ia and type Ib		0.034	-	-		
e compari en Single ch inserte	Type Ia and type III	ลงกรณ์มหาวิทย _{0.101} ย	0.234	-	-		
The betwe whic	Type Ib and type III		0.249	-	-		
The comparison between dict al hand	Type Ia and Ib		-	-	-		

		Statistic testing						
	Туре	One-way ANOVA test	Post HOC test (LSD)	Kruskal- Wallis H	Mann- Whitney U test	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test	
son : band d on crular	Type Ia and type Ib	0.000	0.000		-	-	-	
: compari en Single h inserte	Type Ia and type III		0.000	-	-	-	-	
The betwe whic nosteri	Type Ib and type III		0.673		-	-	-	
The comparison between dictal hand	Type Ia and Ib				-	-	_	

3.8 The vertical distance from midpoint of SPR origin to the fibular tip

3.9 The horizontal distance from midpoint of SPR insertion to the fibular tip

	~		Statistic testing					
	Туре	One-way ANOVA test	Post HOC test (LSD)	Kruskal- Wallis H	Mann- Whitney U test	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test	
nos band : d on relinai	Type la and type lb		0.147	1	-	-	-	
: compari en Single h inserte	Type Ia and type III	0.328	0.181	ายาลัย	-	-	-	
The betwe whic	Type Ib and type III	LONGK	0 AAA O AA 0.881	IVERSIT	- -	-	-	
The comparison between אוכל וביזא	Type Ia and Ib	-	-	-	-	0.354	-	

	Statistic testing						
	Туре	One-way ANOVA test	Post HOC test (LSD)	Kruskal- Wallis H	Mann- Whitney U test	Unpaired t-test	Mann- Whitney U test
son band d on relinion	Type Ia and type Ib		0.036		-	-	-
e comparis een Single ch insertec or intarmi	Type Ia and type III	0.021	0.006	-	-	-	-
betwe whic	Type Ib and type III		0.288		-	-	-
The comparison between ماندنا احtoik	Type Ia and Ib		Ĵ		-	0.417	-
	จุฬา Chula	ansa	ม์มหาวิา ORN UN	ม มี เมษาลัย เมษารถ			

3.10 The vertical distance from midpoint of SPR insertion to fibular tip

		mea	n±SD	
	SPR	Peroneus brev	vis tendon tear	<i>p</i> -value
		Presence	Absent	-
cular	Length	22.33±2.57	22.01±4.17	0.780
ermuso	Width at origin	18.52±4.63	18.34±4.07	0.885
rior int tum	Width at middle part	17.01±4.16	16.27±3.86	0.512
poste sept	Width at insertion	14.86±4.61	14.27±3.68	0.588
ted on	Thickness	0.47±0.26	0.47±0.19	0.571
Inser	Angle	11.43±5.12	9.82±5.89	0.335
ral us	Length	28.06±4.60	28.48±5.70	0.820
late	Width at middle part	12.50±1.58	12.35±2.89	0.878
d on calc	Width at insertion	9.78±3.49	10.44±3.42	0.450
erter all of	Thickness	0.40±0.26	0.37±0.18	0.946
sul SW	Angle Sala M	46.94±14.48	39.39±19.70	0.235

4. The comparison between the presence of PB tendon tear and morphometric data of SPR based on insertion site

CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

		CDD		mean±SD		
		JEN.	Type la	Type Ib	Type III	- p-value
	c	Length	23.90	22.88±2.27	19.97±2.93	0.191
	erior otum	Width at origin	18.56	20.09±4.05	13.27±3.47	0.070
on poste scular sep	Width at middle part	13.22	18.02±4.21	14.91±3.68	0.363	
	Width at insertion	10.90	15.67±5.21	13.47±1.44	0.554	
-	rted	Thickness	0.60	0.44±0.28	0.52±0.30	0.795
_	inte	Angle	23.67	10.87±3.45	9.22±5.75	0.024
-	ral JS	Length	19.52	28.91±3.82	-	-
_	latel	Width at middle part	12.25	12.53±1.68	-	-
_	d on calc	Width at insertion	10.40	9.71±3.67	-	-
-	erter all of	Thickness	0.81	0.34±0.21	-	-
_	lnse Wa	Angle	44.67	47.17±15.24	-	-

5. The comparison between the SPR type in the PB tendon tear and morphometric data of SPR based on insertion site



CHULALONGKORN UNIVERSITY

		SDD		mean±SD		— p-value
		JPR -	Type la	Type Ib	Type III	p-value
	otum	Length	23.90	22.88±2.27	19.97±2.93	0.191
erior		Width at origin	18.56	20.09±4.05	13.27±3.47	0.070
Inserted on poste intermuscular ser	ar se	Width at middle part	13.22	18.02±4.21	14.91±3.68	0.363
	scula	Width at insertion	10.90	15.67±5.21	13.47±1.44	0.554
	srmu:	Thickness	0.60	0.44±0.28	0.52±0.30	0.795
	inte	Angle	23.67	10.87±3.45	9.22±5.75	0.024
all		Length	19.52	28.91±3.82	-	-
al w	SL	Width at middle part	12.25	12.53±1.68	-	-
later	ane	Width at insertion	10.40	9.71±3.67	-	-
d on	calc	Thickness	0.81	0.34±0.21	-	-
ertec	of	Angle	11 67	47.17±15.2		
lns		Angle	44.07	4	-	-
				33		

6. The comparison between the SPR type in the PB tendon tear and morphometric data of SPR

จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย Chulalongkorn University

VITA

NAME

Pimpimol Dangintawat

DATE OF BIRTH

PLACE OF BIRTH

Bangkok

7 August 1986

Home Address

453 Onnut 70/1 Yak 2, Pravet, Bangkok, Thailand, 10250

